
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Daljit Lally, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk 
  

    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Rebecca Greally 
Email: 
Rebecca.Greally@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622616 
Date: Friday, 1 July 2022 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 

 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the CORPORATE SERVICES AND ECONOMIC 
GROWTH OSC to be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, MORPETH, 
NORTHUMBERLAND, NE61 2EF on MONDAY, 11 JULY 2022 at 10.00 AM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
Daljit Lally 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC members as follows:- 

D Bawn (Chair), J Beynon, L Dunn (Vice-Chair), P Jackson, M Murphy, N Oliver, 
A Wallace, C Taylor, M Robinson and P Ezhilchelvan 

 

Portfolio Holders: G. Sanderson and R. Wearmouth. 

Public Document Pack



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 July 2022 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
 

1.   MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Committee are asked to note the following membership and terms of reference for 
the Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC which were agreed by Council on 4 

May 2022.  
  
10 Members (5:3:1 Ind Gp, 1 LD)(LD place given to ING)   
  
Quorum – 3  
  
Chair: D. Bawn  
  
Vice Chair: L. Dunn  
  

Conservative  Labour  Independent 
Group  
  

Liberal 
Democrats  

Green 
Party  

Ind Non-
Grouped  

D. Bawn  L. Dunn  C. Taylor      M. 
Robinson  

J. Beynon  M. Murphy          

P. 
Ezhilchelvan  

A. Wallace          

P. Jackson            

N. Oliver            

  
Terms of reference:  

(1) To maintain an overview of the Council’s Annual Budget and Budgetary 
Management via the Medium Term Financial Plan.  

(2) To review the state of Northumberland and the County Council’s activity in 
delivering its Corporate Plan.  

(3) To maintain an overview of the Council’s performance management 
arrangements; highlighting areas of poor performance and monitoring 
recovery delivery plans.  

(4) To maintain an overview of the Management Agreements in place between the 
Council and Advance Northumberland.  

(5) To monitor, review and make recommendations about:  
 

 Corporate Services: Organisational Development, Health and Safety, ICT 
Strategy, Corporate Governance, Financial Services, Procurement Strategy, 
Risk Strategy, Shared and Traded Services  

 Partnership development coordination with local organisations    

 Relationships with external bodies  

 Regeneration and Economic Development  

 



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 July 2022 

 Strategic Transport Network and Infrastructure  

 Employability, Skills, and removing barriers to work  

 Capital Programme and Asset Management  

 Support to VCS organisations and the Council’s relationship with town and 
parish councils.  

 
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

3.   MINUTES 
 
Minutes of the meetings of the Corporate Services and Economic Growth 
OSC held on 11th April 2022, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 6) 

4.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;    
    

a. Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as 
set out in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose 
the interest, not participate in any discussion or vote and not to 
remain in room. Where members have a DPI or if the matter 
concerns an executive function and is being considered by a 
Cabinet Member with a DPI they must notify the Monitoring Officer 
and arrange for somebody else to deal with the matter.   

    
b. Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a 

Other Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the 
Code of Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the 
matter if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion  or vote 
on the matter and must not remain the room.   

    
c. Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being  (and is 

not  DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, 
to declare the interest and members may only speak on the matter if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the 
member must not take part in discussion or vote on the matter and 
must leave the room.   

    
d. Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or 

close associate or a body included under the Other Registrable 
Interests column in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the 
test set out at paragraph 9 of Appendix B before deciding whether 
they may remain in the meeting.   

    
e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other 

Registerable Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being 
considered in exercise of their executive function, they must notify 
the Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with 
it.    

 



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 July 2022 

    
NB Any member needing clarification must 
contact monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk.  Members are referred 
to the Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please 
refer to the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter. 
 

5.   FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS 
 
To note the latest Forward Plan of key decisions.  Any further changes 
made to the Forward Plan will be reported to the Committee. 
 

(Pages 7 
- 8) 

6.   ANNUAL WORKFORCE REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to:  
  

 Provide an annual position statement in relation to strategic 
workforce related areas of assurance, workstreams/associated 
action plans and progress to date within key areas for 
Northumberland County Council for the full financial year of 
2021/22.  

 To provide assurance to the Corporate Services and Economic 
Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee that there is provision and 
monitoring in place to achieve necessary Key Performance 
Indicators relating to the workforce on an ongoing basis.  

 To provide elected members with an overview of the strategic 
direction for the Council’s workforce related matters as part of the 
Covid-19 recovery plans for the county as these continue to evolve.  

 To provide members with an overview of the monitoring and actions 
taken during the period from 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022 in 
accordance with the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy for employees.  
Members are asked to note that other aspects of Whistleblowing 
which are not employee related are logged and maintained by the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer.  

 
Councillor Richard Wearmouth, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Services is required to attend for this item. 
 

(Pages 9 
- 52) 

7.   DEBT RECOVERY UPDATE 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee with information 
relating to the level of outstanding debt owed to the Council so that the 
Committee may satisfy itself as to the efficiency and effectiveness of its 
collection and recovery policies and systems.  
 
Councillor Richard Wearmouth, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Services is required to attend for this item. 
 

(Pages 
53 - 70) 

8.   GREEN HOMES GRANT 
 
To provide an update on the Green Homes Grant delivery and advise of 
progress since the funding approval in November 2021. 

(Pages 
71 - 80) 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk


 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 July 2022 

 
Councillor Glen Sanderson, Leader and Lead Member for Climate Change 
is required to attend for this item. 
 

9.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Committee is asked to review and note the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 
the 2022/23 council year. 
 

(Pages 
81 - 86) 

10.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

PART II 
 

It is expected that matters included in this part of the Agenda will be dealt with in private.  
Reports referred to are enclosed for members and officers only, coloured pink and marked 

"Not for Publication". 
 

11.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
The Committee is invited to consider passing the following resolution: 
 
(a) That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 

press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item on the Agenda as it involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
1972 Act, and  

 
(b) That the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 

public interest in disclosure for the following reasons:- 
 
Agenda Items Paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A 
 
12 3 - Contains information relating to business affairs of 

any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information)  

 

AND The public interest in maintaining this exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosure because 
disclosure could adversely affect the business 
reputation or confidence in the person / organisation 
and could adversely affect commercial revenue. 

 

 

12.   TRADING COMPANIES’ FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2021-22 - 
POSITION AT THE END OF MARCH 2022 
 
The purpose of the report is to ensure that the Cabinet is informed of the 
current financial positions of its trading companies and of any relevant 
issues arising. 
 
Councillor Richard Wearmouth, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Services is required to attend for this item. 

 



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 July 2022 

 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 11 July 2022 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 

Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  

 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 

 

 



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, Monday, 11 July 2022 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 

 
4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 

Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

 
6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 

one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 

may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 

otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 

room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 

disclose the nature of the interest. 

 

Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 

 



 
Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 July 2022 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 
ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CORPORATE SERVICES AND ECONOMIC GROWTH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
At a meeting of the Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held in the Meeting Space, Block 1, Floor 2, County Hall, Morpeth, NE61 2EF 
on Monday, 11 April 2022 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor D Bawn 
(Chairman in the Chair) 

 
COUNCILLORS 

  
Beynon, J. 
Dunn, E. 
Ezhilchelvan, P. 
 

Oliver, N. 
Robinson, M. 
Taylor, C. 
Wallace, A. 

 
OFFICERS 

  
 

Binjal, S. 
Black, M. 
 
Bowman, D. 
 
Earle, R. 
Greally, R. 
 
Mowbray, A. 
Nicholson, S. 
O’Farrell, R. 
Rolton, P. 
Willis, J. 
 

Monitoring Officer 
Director of Economic Growth & 
Investments 
Ascent Homes Development 
Director 
Chief Operating Officer 
Assistant Democratic Services 
Officer 
Head of Project Management 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
Executive Director 
British Volt 
Executive Director of Finance 
(Section 151 Officer) 

 
 

17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

 Apologies were received from Councillors P. Jackson and M. Murphy. 
 
 
18. MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Services and 
Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 7 March 2021, as 
circulated, be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.   
 
 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 April 2022      2 

 

20. FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS 
 
The Forward Plan of forthcoming Key Cabinet decisions was reported to the 
Committee.  (Report enclosed with the signed minutes as Appendix A). 

 
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan of key decisions be noted  
 
 

21.  BLYTH RELIEF ROAD 
 

R. O’Farrell, Executive Director, introduced the report to committee. It gave an 
update on the Blyth Relief Road and outlined the funding that will be needed for the 
option 5 route. Councillor W. Ploszaj, Portfolio holder for Business added that it was 
a much needed road in Blyth and will be beneficial to the County. 
 
The following comments were made in response to member’s questions:- 
 

• Members welcomed the proposals set out in the report given the 
longstanding traffic congestion problems in and around Blyth. 

• Members acknowledged that Route 3 was no longer viable due to risks from 
housing developments. Route 5 was now the most viable option. 

• It was acknowledged that Route 5 was on the periphery of the congestion 
area, however Members were assured that there were amendments to Route 
5 to help alleviate congestion. 

• Officers confirmed that Route 5 was the only viable option as it was the only 
route that matched the cost to benefit analysis and other routes may not 
have secured funding from Central Government. Officers were confident that 
the funding would be approved and confirmed that discussions had with the 
Department of Transport had been positive. 

• Members were assured that there would be a full public consultation on the 
proposed route and the programme of the consultation would be shared with 
Members. 

• Members were assured that there was a strong commitment from the 
Administration to complete the work, but a date of completion could not be 
given. 

• Paragraph 7 of the report outlined the improvements that would be made to 
Route 5. Officers assured Members that there would be joined up working 
within other services to ensure work was not duplicated throughout the 
scheme. 

 
 
 

RESOLVED members agreed to note and support the recommendations in the 
report.  
 
 
 
 

24. ADVANCE NORTHUMBERLAND 
 

Page 2



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 April 2022      3 

 

R. O’Farrell, Executive Director, introduced the Advance team to committee. It was 
explained that Advance had presented at Informal Cabinet and NALC and they had 
been well received, therefore it was thought beneficial to present to committee. 
 
R. Earle, Chief Operating Officer, introduced the presentation to committee. The 
presentation gave an overview of Advance Northumberland as a company and 
highlighted activities undertaken by different sectors. The presentation gave 
information regarding the Advance Northumberland Estate including commercial 
and residential properties in their portfolios. 
 
D. Brown, Ascent Homes Development Director, gave an overview of the Housing 
Regeneration work. It outlined schemes that had been delivered and up-coming 
schemes in the pipeline. It showed the proportions of private sale and affordable 
housing within these schemes. 
 
A. Mowbray, Head of Project Management, gave an insight into the project 
management work carried out by Advance Northumberland Developments. They 
outlined the companies they had worked with which included Active 
Northumberland. The work illustrated how Advance Northumberland Developments 
had a skilled and experienced team with a proven track record of successful 
completed projects and there were £150 million of committed projected running to 
2025 in the pipeline. 
 
M. Black, Director of Economic Growth & Investments, presented how Advance 
Northumberland supported businesses across the County. The presentation 
showed strategic employment sites and entrerprise zones including 
Northumberland Energy Park. It also gave a summary of Key Town projects 
including Amble Retail Park and Tyne View Retail Park in Prudhoe. 
 
The following comments were made in response to Members questions: - 
 

• Officers confirmed that Ashington College was relocated to the Wansbeck 
Business Park after they approached Advance, it would have been 
preferrable to keep the Business Park for employment only however there 
were benefits to the location. 

• Members thanked Officers for the detailed presentation and asked if a 
presentation could be brought to Scrutiny on an annual basis to give a yearly 
update which Officers were happy to oblige. 

• Discussions were on-going regarding the acquisition of the Priestpopple site. 
Planners were creating a development brief to outline what would be 
appropriate on the site in conjunction with adjacent developments.  

• Officers acknowledged that the Real Estate industry was a male orientated 
industry and had schemes in place to try and overcome this. There was a 
rising stars project which gave training and development for internal 
progression. It was confirmed that ¼ of the Senior Team were female and 
there were 2 female board members with another female member joining 
soon.  

• Officers confirmed that the costing fronts were being monitored on projects in 
response to the cost of living rising to ensure investments were economically 
viable. 

Page 3



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 April 2022      4 

 

• Officers confirmed that the Council would be responsible to create schemes 
to combat issues of sustainability in rural areas and then Advance would 
implement this. 

• Officers confirmed that affordable housing was rented out through social 
housing companies.  

• Discussions were on-going between Advance and the Council regarding 
delivering a large part of the affordable housing that was set out in the 
Council budget. 

• Members were assured that everywhere industrially was in high demand and 
across the industrial portfolio there hadn’t been a higher occupancy before.  

• Although the company works closely with the Council it was clarified to 
Members that company was autonomous with its own board. 

 
 
25 BRITISH VOLT 
 

P. Rolt, Executive Chairman of British Volt, introduced the presentation to 
committee. The detailed presentation gave an update on the project. It outlined the 
plans for the Gigaplant factory in Northumberland and the Supplier Park to support 
the factory. It also introduced the committee to the BV FutureGen Foundation which 
would hope to encourage people into a career at British Volt. 
 
The following comments were made in response to Members questions:- 
 

• Members thanked Officers for an excellent presentation, and shared their 
enthusiasm at the fantastic opportunity British Volt had brought to 
Northumberland.  

• It was explained to Members that there were technical challenges when 
looking at producing a battery for HGV due to energy density but in the future 
there may be a way to produce one. 

• Members were assured that British Volt wanted to be on the leading edge of 
battery production but it was also important to ensure the technology was 
sustainable. The senior team in the company were all leading experts and 
had many accolades for their work within the battery production sector 
highlighting the companies commitment to the longevity of the project. 

• Members were assured that British Volt wanted to create jobs for local 
people. The Learning & Development team were already in place and were 
visiting schools to encourage the next generation into the industry through 
STEM learning. 

• It was confirmed that the supplier park was to produce parts that were 
needed to make the product. The supplier park being in close proximity 
meant batteries would be produced more efficiently. 

• Officers confirmed there would be no waste discharge from the factory. 
There would be a small amount of by-product which would be tinkered off 
site and processed elsewhere.  

• Members were assured that partners of the company would break down the 
raw materials into the usable products. 
 

 
 

24.  MONITORING REPORT 

Page 4



Corporate Services and Economic Growth OSC, 11 April 2022      5 

 

 
The Committee received an update on its Monitoring Report for the 2021/22 council 
year.  

  
RESOLVED that this information was noted.   

 
 

 
 

Chairman  

 

Date    

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   1 

FORWARD PLAN OF FORTHCOMING CABINET DECISIONS 
SEPTEMBER/OCTOBER 2022 
 

DECISION PROPOSED 
SCRUTINY DATE 

CABINET DATE 
 

   
Declaration of an Ecological 
Emergency 
 
To consider a proposal that 
Northumberland County Council should 
declare an ecological emergency 
alongside the climate emergency, setting 
out the potential reasons for 
doing so and a framework for action to 
address this. 
(C.Horncastle/D. Feige - 01670 622653) 
 

C&P OSC 
5 October 2022 

13 September 2022 

Haydon Parish Neighbourhood Plan 
 
To seek approval to formally ‘make’ the 
Haydon Parish Neighbourhood Plan. The 
Plan passed independent examination in 
March 2022. A local referendum will be 
held in the Parish of Haydon on 30 June 
2022 and it is expected that there will be a 
majority vote in favour of using the Plan to 
make decisions on planning applications. 
The Council will then be obliged by statute 
to make the Neighbourhood Plan unless it 
considers that doing so would breach 
European Union obligations, and that 
action should be completed within 8 weeks 
of the date of the referendum. 
(C. Horncastle/S. Brannigan 07966 335 
508) 
 

N/A 13 September 2022 

Trading Companies’ Financial 
Performance 2022-23 - Position at the 
end of June 2022 
 
The purpose of the report is to ensure that 
the Cabinet is informed of the current 
financial positions of its trading companies 
for 2022-23 
(R. Wearmouth/M. Calvert - 01670 
620197) 
(Confidential report) 
 

CSEG OSC 
12 September 2022 

13 September 2022 

  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Date: July 2022 
 

Annual Update Report for Workforce (2021/22) 
Report of the Interim Service Director of HR/OD  
Portfolio Member: Councillor Richard Wearmouth, Deputy Leader 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
The purpose of this report is to: 
 

● Provide an annual position statement in relation to strategic workforce related 
areas of assurance, workstreams/associated action plans and progress to date 
within key areas for Northumberland County Council for the full financial year of 
2021/22. 

● To provide assurance to the Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee that there is provision and monitoring in place to achieve 
necessary Key Performance Indicators relating to the workforce on an ongoing 
basis. 

● To provide elected members with an overview of the strategic direction for the 
Council’s workforce related matters as part of the Covid-19 recovery plans for the 
county as these continue to evolve. 

● To provide members with an overview of the monitoring and actions taken during 

the period from 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022 in accordance with the 

Council’s Whistleblowing Policy for employees.  Members are asked to note that 

other aspects of Whistleblowing which are not employee related are logged and 

maintained by the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 

 
Recommendations:   
 
The recommendations are: 
 

● Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee note 
the contents of the report. 

● Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
continue to receive an annual update of this report for every financial year.  

● Note the data that is contained in the whistleblowing report and the ongoing work 

to promote a safe environment for staff to raise concerns through various 

mechanisms across the Council. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

2 
 

● Support the continued use of Safecall across the Council as an additional 

mechanism for staff to raise concerns accordingly. 

 
Links to the Corporate Plan 
 
The Northumberland County Council (NCC) Corporate Plan (2021-24) has identified a 
number of core strategic priorities and supporting key themes of which the following are 
particularly relevant to the workforce:  
 

● We want to attract more and better jobs (Thriving) 
● We want you to feel safe, healthy, and cared for (Living) 
● We want you to achieve and realise your potential (Learning) 
● We want you to love where you live (Enjoying) 
● We want you to have access to the things you need (Connecting) 
● We want to be efficient, open and work for everyone (How) 

 
HR/OD have also published a Service Statement 2021-2022 that is reviewed and 
updated annually as part of our ongoing governance arrangements.  
 
Background 
 
An integral part of the Council’s success in delivering high quality services to the 
population of Northumberland is based on the workforce of the Council. This report 
gives an overview of the employment and workforce related issues which are overseen 
by the Council’s Workforce Committee.  The Workforce Committee is a sub-committee 
of the Executive Leadership Team and provides assurance and accountability in relation 
to all Workforce matters. 
 
Current Landscape  
 
Moving forward out of the COVID pandemic and towards a new way of working agilely. 
Support is still available for employees through  

 A structured and enhanced health and wellbeing suite of activities and support 
for staff affected by the pandemic, both within the workplace and those who were 
working remotely. 

 Regular briefings and information held including drop in sessions  

 Additional personal protective equipment including obtaining feedback from staff 
around adequacy and localised supplies 

 Personalised risk assessments undertaken for all staff to ensure that managers 
had individual conversations with staff focused on their health and wellbeing, 
personal circumstances as well as work related matters 

 Through our shared Occupational Health Service early access to vaccines for 
frontline social care staff. 

 Regular drop-in sessions and senior leadership meetings dedicating a significant 
amount of the agenda to supporting staff. 

 
In the autumn on 2020, an interim HR/OD People Strategy was developed covering a 
six-month period up to the end of April 2021, this was in recognition of the need for a 
rationalised focus during this period and, in particular, on staff health and wellbeing.  A 
further wider People Strategy for 2021-2024 is now in place to provide narrative as to 

Page 10



 

3 
 

our ambition to continue to be an employer of choice in a post-pandemic era. A copy of 
the document is attached as an appendix.  
 
Current data  
 
1. The Council currently employs 4,932 staff (headcount) and 4,386.37 FTE (as at 

31.03.21) - excluding schools. 
 
2.  The number of staff employed in schools by Northumberland County Council is 

3984 staff (headcount) and 2563.16 FTE (as at 31.03.21). For the purposes of 
this report the HR/OD performance only relates to NCC directly employed staff as 
schools have their own governance structures managed through their governing 
bodies although the Council makes available a schools HR/OD advisory service 
which schools may subscribe to if they wish to. 

 
3.  Labour turnover for 20/21 is 12.00% which has decreased from the previous year 

(13.17%) and is likely to be a result of the voluntary redundancy scheme which 
ran again in 2020/21. The total figure is lower than the LGA reported average of 
13.4% labour turnover rate nationally (LGA Workforce survey 2018/191). 

  

                                                 
1 Note no updated LGA figures are available due to HR benchmarking being on hold. 

Page 11



 

4 
 

Workforce Committee  
 

 The Workforce Committee has established and is regularly reviewing a wide range 
of metrics which are used to manage and monitor compliance and best practice with 
workforce related issues across the whole council. 
 

 On a monthly basis, Directors or their nominated Senior Manager through the 
Workforce Committee are asked to provide a full position statement relating to their 
area of responsibility.  In advance of the meeting, Managers and Directors are 
provided with their position statement data which is mapped against a suite of 
workforce metrics for their area. Directors or their nominated Senior Manager are 
then responsible for providing an overview of their current performance and planned 
performance against the required compliance levels for each set of workforce 
metrics. 

 

 Focussed attention continues to be on the key performance indicators with 
promoting a positive staff experience being another core area of focus.  Key 
performance indicators focused on are e.g., health and wellbeing (including absence 
management), induction, statutory and mandatory training and appraisal. 

 

 The Workforce Committee also monitors the progress of the HR/OD Strategy. 
 
Update on the Interim Covid-19 HR People Strategy and HR/OD Strategy including 
WORKSMART 
 
Given the substantial changes that happened due to the pandemic the Director of HR 
provided an Interim Covid 19 HR People Strategy that spanned 2020 and taking the 
organisation to the middle of 2021. The short-term strategy provided focus and 
resilience until May 2021 when the HR /OD service developed a longer-term Workforce 
Strategy aligned to a revised corporate plan for the future.  
 
 The Interim Covid 19 strategy workstreams of  

o Engagement and Experience 
o Health and Wellbeing 
o Managing self and others 
o Developing self and others 
o Equality, Diversity and Inclusion 
o Recruitment, Reward and Recognition. 

 
The longer-term strategy replaced above with the following themes and workstreams  

  

 Enriched Experience 

 Health, Wellbeing & Selfcare 

 Planning our People for the Future 

 Equality, Diversity & Inclusion for Everyone  

 Systems Innovation and Automation 
 

Within each of the 5 Strategic Themes there are core actions/objectives. Responsibility 
for delivery of these actions will be led by the Council’s Workforce Committee on behalf 
of the Executive Team and will be supported by the HR/OD Team. These will be the 

Page 12



 

5 
 

focus of delivery over a four-year period leading up to May 2025.  In every aspect of this 
strategy, we will seek to embed our core corporate values which are: 
 
• Residents first 
• Excellence and quality 
• Respect 
• Keeping our communities safe and well 
 
While this strategy is not solely aimed at the council’s response to the global 
Coronavirus Pandemic, it must be recognised that working lives for everyone have 
changed because of it. Considering this we recognise that this ‘natural disruption’ has 
offered us the opportunity to do things differently. As One Council we have collectively 
decided our response to working in a post pandemic environment will be called: 
 
WorkSmart – It’s what you do, not where you do it!   
 
Our strategic aim is to integrate the WorkSmart philosophy throughout every element of 
this strategy, ensuring our practices allow our staff to have the best working experience, 
which we believe in turn will have positive impacts on the services we deliver to our 
local residents. 
 
In 2021 the Council launched a ‘Climate Change Action Plan’ outlining our commitment 
to reducing our carbon emissions to net zero by 2030. Human activity is cited as the 
main cause of climate change, it is therefore fundamentally important that our People 
strategy seeks to mitigate the environmental impact of our employees’ activities. Our 
strategic aim is to ensure that NCC takes ‘a climate conscious approach’ to delivery of 
this strategy.  
 
The HR/OD People Strategy 2021-2025 has been summarised as a one-page 
document. Appendix 1. This is to aid dissemination/useability and to ensure that the 
delivery of WorkSmart and our core values run through the heart of every key strategic 
theme. 
 
Enriched Experience  
 
Why is this so important to the organisation, our staff and residents? 
Organisations with high levels of staff engagement are consistently shown to be more 
successful. When we try to ensure that our staff’s experience at work is a positive one 
where they feel fulfilled, motivated and are committed and loyal, we will see higher 
productivity, lower turnover and lower absence rates. We can face the future with the 
benefit of a higher degree of certainty, if we’re a great employer we’re more likely to be 
able to attract, grow and retain talent.  
 
What have we achieved? 
The Council has invested heavily in engaging staff.  Some initiatives and work practices 
include: 

- Development of a Staff Engagement toolkit 
- Coaching and mentoring programme.  We have a network of 45 trained coaches 

and 32 mentors 

Page 13



 

6 
 

- Support 9 Staff Network Groups including LGBT+, Mental Wellbeing, 
Menopause, Carers, Enable, Race Equality, ASD, Armed Forces and 
Apprenticeships. 

- Established a Staff Engagement function 
- Regular staff surveys throughout the Covid pandemic to cover wellbeing and risk 

assessment.  The Council achieved an 80.5% response rate in 2019 and is due 
to move forward with a Staff survey in late 2022. 

- Development of Smarter working guidelines to support staff and allow them to 
feel engaged wherever they are 

- Staff awards to recognise our excellent people and to publicly demonstrate our 
pride in the services they deliver. 

 
What advanced/new thinking is emerging in this area? 
The Covid-19 global pandemic moved the goal posts for the working environment, the 
types of work that our staff do and what staff want from the Council as their employer. 
There is likely to be an increased focus on employee engagement and how the Council 
communicates and engages with a more dispersed workforce operating outside of 
‘traditional’ working environments, especially those who might opt to work from home, 
away from colleagues.  
 

What are we aiming to achieve? 
Whilst we have made excellent progress in engaging our workforce there are areas that 
we can always improve upon and develop.  
 
We are trying to achieve: 

 Continue to progress positive outcomes from staff survey action plans 

 Respond appropriately and proactively to staff survey results including working 
with staff survey action plan lead officers, assist directors and heads of service in 
delivering positive change and deliver action plan workshops with specific teams 
involving all staff in a 'safe space' to deliver improvement through consultation 

 Create better relationships with our hard-to-reach groups  

 Greater utilisation and further expansion of our established network groups 

 Improve employee satisfaction scores 

 Rollout of #WorkSmart and smarter working guidelines to support our staff in the 
post-pandemic landscape 

 Feed into wellbeing initiatives that will result in greater levels of engagement 

 Involve staff in designing and setting HR policy  

 Try to encourage staff to feel a sense of belonging to the Council. We want staff 
to want to do their best for the Council 

 Become an employer that invests in our staff, creating commitment and loyalty 

 Effective recruitment and development of future employees and leaders through 
mentoring coaching and our expanded apprenticeship programme. 

 

What does success look like? 
Employee engagement is a difficult metric to measure. However, in achieving our 
objectives we would expect to see: 

 A boost to our employee satisfaction scores 

 Digitisation and improved accessibility for all employees  

 Employees talking positively about the Council, and this is borne out in public 
forums like Glass Door 

Page 14



 

7 
 

 Better employee metrics like lower turnover, lower sickness rates, better 
recruitment fill rates  

 Our staff to feel positive about their own development and look for opportunities 
to advance and grow  

 Staff who want to innovate and create. Engaged employees come forward with 
suggestions and improvements 

 A successful ‘grow your own’ programme that invests in the development of key 
staff at all levels.  

 Engaging effectively with our employees at every stage of the employment 
journey from induction to exit. 

 Create an environment where employees feel safe, empowered, cared about and 
able to speak up and challenge 

 Employees are satisfied with their employee benefit package and their terms and 
conditions 

 
Key objectives for this workstream are: 
 

Objective(s) 

To plan & deliver a pulse approach to staff survey and employee feedback 

Develop and deliver a WorkSmart #TNLand communication and delivery plan including branding identity 

Deliver a seamless close to the NHS Trust partnership  

Deliver a forward-thinking refresh of NCC T’s & C’s 

Expand Coaching and Mentoring culture 

Technology for All to enhance experience 

Enhance digital communication channels 

Full scale evaluation of Staff survey data to date to embed people centred culture 

 
  

Page 15



 

8 
 

Health, Wellbeing & Selfcare 
 
Why is this so important to the organisation, our staff and residents? 
Organisations that invest in employee wellbeing observe increased resilience, better 
employee engagement, reduced sickness absence and higher performance and 
productivity. Encouraging employees to lead a healthier life, take the best care of 
themselves and really focus on their personal wellbeing not only benefits them as 
individuals but also benefits the Council and our residents. Caring and investing in 
employee wellbeing has impact on employees’ productivity and, in turn, delivers the 
best value for residents. Residents receive better service from employees who are 
healthy, motivated and engaged.  

Sickness absence, one of the most significant employee costs, can be minimised by 
taking proactive steps to safeguard workforce resilience. Mental health costs employers 
in the UK between £33 billion and £42 billion a year (Thriving at Work: The Independent 
Review of Mental Health and Employers). If the Council were able to reduce sickness 
absence by a mere 1%, up £1 million savings could be made in a year.  

What we have achieved: 
The Council has dedicated resource committed solely to the provision of health and 
wellbeing initiatives and work practices. Through this programme of work, we have 
achieved: 
 

 Received Ambassador Status from The Better Health @ Work Awards, out of 
452 organisations we were one of only two selected to have Ambassador status. 
In 2022 we are striving for “continuing excellence” as we pursue the award for 
our 11th consecutive year. 

 Established virtual initiatives through Facebook and other virtual platforms (Staff 
Virtual Sports & Social Club, Calm Space, Big Sing, Buddy Scheme, Long Covid 
support, CEV/Shielding Drop in, Instructor live, Mental Wellbeing Surgeries for 
Line Managers & Staff Photography, Gardening, Climate Change & Netball 
Clubs). These provide a space for employees to interact with their colleagues, 
away from ‘work’, to have light relief, fun, as well as a hugely welcomed ‘safe 
space.’  They are supported by Senior Management who have recognised the 
important value they add to the organisation. 

 Created our staff Health & wellbeing Portal on SharePoint so that staff can easily 
access health & wellbeing support: 
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthandWellbeing 

 Raised awareness of financial wellbeing support, and other resources that staff 
may not have accessed previously such as couch to financial fitness, budget 
calculators & direct support pathway to CAB. 

 Conducted Personal Risk Assessments for all employees throughout the 
pandemic, undertaken in June 2020, refreshed in February 2021 

 Conducted pulse survey regarding return to work using the WORKSMART 
branding  

 Partnered with MIND, NUFC Foundation, Northumbria Healthcare, Occupational 
Health and gambling/ alcohol experts to provide wide range of activities, events 
and challenges, alongside tips and techniques, and innovative tools and 
resources to support staff. 

Page 16

https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/sites/HealthandWellbeing


 

9 
 

 Worked with specific service areas to provide bespoke H&W opportunities within 
Team meetings and Wellbeing themed sessions including Mental Wellbeing 
Training for Line Managers, Laughter Yoga & Mindfulness. 

 Campaigned to raise awareness - Men's Health Week, Carers Week, Mental 
Health Awareness, International Women’s Day and Money Talks Week.  

 Ran 4 “Own Brand” campaigns throughout the year all linked to WorkSmart. New 
Year, New You, Spring into Summer, Thrive@Autumn and Winter Winners to 
provide recognised activities that staff can engage with to improve H&W. 

 Achieved Prior to CV19 85.8% rated the council 7 or above of taking staff health 
and wellbeing seriously, this has increased by 4.2% to 90% because of the 
pandemic.  

 Implemented a new H&W offer for Elected Members including Health assured, 
Access to H&W portal & ongoing support. 

 Expanded H&W team to include Psychological Wellbeing Co-ordinator & H&W 
Apprentice to further future proof & improve our H&W offer to staff. 

 Achieved Mindful Employer Status for the next two years (2022 –2024), 
nominated for (2022) and won (2021) PPMA Excellence in Health & wellbeing 
Award. 

 
What advanced/new thinking is emerging in this area? 
The Covid-19 global pandemic has taught employers that unexpected and impactful 
situations can arise with little warning and that it is more important than ever that 
employees are resilient physically, mentally (and financially).   

 Interest in mental health increased during the pandemic. Working conditions 
changed massively and this created additional stress and anxiety. Working from 
home blurred the lines between working / home environments and in some cases 
has caused ‘burnout’. 

 Work / Life balance is a crucial factor for employees.  
Regional/ national research indicates: 

o 64% now want to split working time between home and office (North East 
Chamber of Commerce).   

o 50%+ enjoy a better work life balance, had more time for personal 
activities, and feel more able to juggle demands of home and work (IWFM 
National Survey)  

 Organisation should focus on prevention. Rather than intervene when it might be 
too late. Instead, prevention should be the starting point. Preventative measures 
might include mental health training for measures, flexible workspaces to suit all 
needs, health check and immunisation offers, encouraging higher levels of 
activity, healthy lifestyle advice 

 Financial wellness means a reduction in money-related stress. Financial stress 
can cause employees to become absent.  

 

What are we aiming to achieve? 

By building on our previous successes and progress to date, using the People Strategy 
we are trying to achieve: 
 

 To become an exemplar of Health, Wellbeing and Self-care good practice as we 
move forward to recovery. 

 To build on the success of campaigns, and promote engagement across the 
organisation 

Page 17



 

10 
 

 Embed Health in All Policies (HIAP) – in partnership with Public Health, 
Workforce Committee, and external partners. Support positive health impact 
across all policies and decision making 

 Highlight the importance of the role team managers play in supporting H, WB & 
SC across the workforce. Actively support, enable, and engage with managers to 
ensure they feel empowered to support their teams. 

 Enhanced “support pathway to recovery” – greater focus on wider determinants 
of wellbeing, promoting positive lifestyle choices and avoiding negative coping 
strategies such as alcohol & drugs 

 Increased capacity to build on successes with additional roles - Psychological 
Wellbeing Officer and H&WB Apprentice 

 Development of a Financial wellbeing strategy to promote good financial 
wellbeing, raising awareness and support for those facing financial difficulties in 
our partnership working with external agencies such as Citizen’s Advice Bureau, 
Gamble aware and NCB (Northumberland Community Bank). 

 Futureproof our H&W provision with a robust digital H&W offer to improve health 
literacy, equality of access, variety, and innovation. 

 Expand our successful Health & Wellbeing Champion structure to further scope 
and capacity. 

 
What success will look like: 
In achieving our objectives, we would expect to see: 

 A Health, Wellbeing and Self-care offer which promotes, supports, and provides 
access to health and wellbeing equally to all our staff. 

 Prioritisation of mental wellbeing and focus on a supportive recovery, improving 
resilience and practising self-care 

 Health driven positive policies with a key focus on wellbeing, equality, and 
diversity 

 Increased positive ratings, via staff survey, of how our workforce view their own 
health and wellbeing, evidenced by reduced sickness levels. 

 Improved levels of staff engagement, increased awareness, and recognition of 
the importance of Health, Wellbeing and Self-care across all services within the 
council 

 Improved/stable sickness absence rates. 
 
Key objectives for this workstream are: 
 

Objective(s) 

To develop a health in all policies approach to all procedures 

 To build and expand upon current welfare campaigns 

To build a post CV-19 staff support pathway focussing on drugs and alcohol and psychological input. 

To enhance and widen the health & wellbeing resource – aligned to business needs 

Embed selfcare culture across the organisation 

Significant improvements in how the workforce rate their own health and wellbeing. 

 
 

Page 18



 

11 
 

Planning our People for the Future 
 
Why is this so important to the organisation, our staff and residents? 
Effective workforce planning will enable the council to ensure that we secure a highly 
skilled, proactive, adaptable, and responsive workforce who are equipped, enabled, and 
supported to deliver high quality services to meet the evolving needs of the 
organisation, our staff, and our residents. Planning our people means we will ensure we 
take a proactive approach to recruitment and retention of our staff. We want to attract 
the best and make it attractive for them to stay with us. Through planning we can 
identify the skills required now and over time and train our workforce to be ready and 
deliver. Through succession planning we can chart progression paths and build in 
service resilience. The greater our service resilience the better service we can deliver to 
residents. Our strategy aims to ensure our people enjoy their work and giving excellent 
service, they are well trained and committed to their future with the Council.  
 
What we have achieved previously: 
As a service we have led the way in working agilely, thinking progressively and adapting 
to change. We have quickly learnt how to embrace and employ innovative technologies 
and virtual tools to maintain a positive learning environment and ensure effective 
HR/OD support for staff in an uncertain and changing landscape. We have shared this 
knowledge with the workforce to enable them to adapt their own service-delivery. 
 
Our successes have included: 

 Review and refresh of required learning 

 Development of Covid helpline to support staff and managers with a consistent 
response to staffing issues and urgent queries. 

 Increase in virtual training offer, maximising use of e-learning, virtual classroom, 
and webinar formats 

 Development of support process for virtual response to staff’s individual health 
needs impacted by Covid. 

 Development of Smarter Working guidance for staff and managers responding to 
more agile staff working arrangements 

 Development of manager induction training and HR Policy into Practice Briefings 
for Managers 

 Delivery of Virtual Leadership Summit 

 Development of virtual recruitment events for apprenticeships 
 
What advanced/new thinking is emerging in this area 
Workforce planning is widely discussed as being of increasing importance in terms of 
the future of work and an area that is seeing considerable evolution. New thinking in this 
area includes: 

 Introducing hybrid ways of working, i.e., blended training, smarter working 
arrangements. Understanding that one size does not fit all (the unique 
circumstance of each employee is likely to affect their working arrangements). 

 Creating partnerships and making the most of effective collaboration with 
community and voluntary sector to deliver the right services for local needs 

 Creating internal links and fostering positive relationships between different 
services involved in the workforce planning process to gain greater engagement. 
In this approach HR shifts from enforcer to ‘facilitator’ of workforce planning. HR 
should invite the right people to the table and facilitate the right conversations. 

Page 19



 

12 
 

 Understanding skills data to support career paths and boost the potential for 
internal movement is increasingly important.  

 Ensure AI is factored into future workforce planning. Technology is changing the 
landscape of work and job roles will inevitably change. 
 

What are we aiming to achieve: 
As a future focused endeavor, we will use the People Strategy to achieve: 

 Talent management and progression pathways linking to succession planning, 

apprenticeships, training and continuing professional development.  

 Matching the skills and equipping our workforce for the evolving landscape of 

service delivery 

 Ensuring that our hybrid working is fit for purpose 

 Developing and delivering a recruitment strategy that will address skills shortfall 

and attract the best talent 

What success will look like: 
In achieving our objectives, we would expect to see: 

 A future proof workforce to ensure excellence and quality in service delivery 

 A plan/do/review model embedded to assess the impact and effectiveness of 

new workforce initiatives 

 A whole-organisation approach to our learning and development provision, 

ensuring effective spend through centralisation of the training budgets. 

 An effective process of identification of training needs through supervision, 

appraisal and service planning (Golden Thread) matched with environment-

scanning to ensure staff are prepared for impact of national, regional and local 

initiatives  

 
Key objectives for this workstream are: 
 

Objective(s) 

Creation of a succession planning dashboard 

Undertake a post CV-19 workforce planning/ redesign exercise 

Redesign of internal apprenticeship programme 

Development of Staff bank to reduce agency spend 

Implementation of talent pathways using the data built above 

Development of learning catalogue aligned to appraisal needs 

Continued development of learning technologies to enhance quality and efficiencies in support of the WorkSmart 

approach 

 
 
 
  

Page 20



 

13 
 

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion for Everyone 

 
Why is this so important to the organisation, our staff and residents? 
Employer that welcome employees of all backgrounds benefit from being able to tap 
into a range of skills and ideas. Different people bring different perspectives, ideas and 
abilities. By employing a diverse workforce, the Council can be progressive, solve 
problems and innovate.  
 
In addition, NCC has a statutory duty under the Equality Act to recognise the needs of 
its employees in relation to the 9 protected characteristics. We have a responsibility to 
prevent discrimination and our aim is to improve the chances, experiences and daily 
lives of people who work for us or who access our services. Whilst we acknowledge our 
duties and responsibilities under the Equality Act, we have ambition to go beyond the 
legislation, we want to positively celebrate diversity and we aspire to establish a 
reputation as a truly inclusive employer and a brand which incorporates our values. To 
be the best organisation we need the best employees, so we need to reach out and be 
fully inclusive in our practices. If we get it right for the most vulnerable members of our 
workforce, we get it right for everyone. 
 
What we have achieved previously 
Equality, diversity and inclusion as an imperative has gained an increasing prominence 
within the Council. We have: 

 Established 9 staff network groups which create the opportunity for employees 
with specific lived experiences, and their allies, to have a safe space for open 
and honest communication. They provide support and create a platform to share 
ideas and feedback to the organisation. The organisation listens to this feedback 
and the work of the network groups is endorsed and supported at the highest 
level of the organisation. The network groups contribute to the development of 
employment policies through commenting on policies pre-policy sub-group 

 Trained internal workplace mentors to provide reverse mentoring around lived 
experience with a view to matching managers to mentors to increase 
organisational cultural awareness 

 Become the second highest ranked local authority in the 2019/20 Stonewall 
Index and will continue our improvement journey working with local organisations 

 Been cited as one of the best local authorities in the country in the Gender Pay 
Gap reporting process and have implemented action plans to further close the 
gap 

 Developed our recruitment processes to encourage applications from diverse 
groups, and we have a guaranteed interview scheme for applicants with 
disabilities and are participating in a regional recruitment event to increase 
applicants from disabled and BAME communities 

 Been nominated and short-listed for several ED&I awards both regionally and 
nationally (e.g., PPMA, CiPD etc.) 

 Ensured that all employees have equal access to development opportunities and 
provide learning which supports different learning styles and approaches 

 Adapted a wide range of our learning to virtual delivery ensuring access for 
employees working in various locations and/or with different working patterns as 
well as refining our ED&I training programmes to reflect current best practice 

Page 21



 

14 
 

 Achieved a high percentage response to our recent staff surveys with no 
evidence that employees with protected characteristics did not engage or are 
experiencing significant disadvantage 

 Developed a high level of employee engagement in response to our wide range 
of E, D & I campaigns and initiatives e.g., Northumberland Pride and Pride 
Month, Black History month, LGBTQ+ month, Men’s Health and Mental health 
Weeks to name but a few. 

 
What advanced/new thinking is emerging in this area? 
Increasingly organisations recognise the advantages of promoting and practicing good 
equality diversity and inclusion. Latest developments in this area include: 

 Advancing technologies in recruitment and selection which provide hiring 
managers with new tools and increased confidence to try out different 
recruitment and selection approaches and campaigns - adopting new flexible 
working patterns that could facilitate applicants who live outside the area could 
increase the diversity of our workforce 

 Bystander Training – empowering employees to address and prevent 
harassment and discrimination in the workplace. Providing employees with the 
right knowledge, tools and motivation to intervene in a safe way 

 The Power of Storytelling – making issues real for people by sharing examples of 
lived experience 

 The Power of Staff Networks to help shape and influence organisational culture 
is increasingly being recognised 

 Conscious bias – there has been emphasis on unconscious bias training in 
recent years however organisations are more comfortable now and prepared to 
tackle conscious bias. It would be a positive move to begin the conversation and 
raise the profile of this issue. 

 
What are we aiming to achieve? 
In developing our equality diversity and inclusion offer we hope: 

 To be the best and most inclusive employer  

 To attract talent from outside of our region and recognise the importance of 
employing a representative workforce 

 To have systems and policies in place that enable and support our ambitions 

 To ensure equality for all – recognising that we are all different but are also all 
equal 

 To attract, retain and develop the best staff regardless of background, race, 
ability/disability, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, etc. 

 
What success will look like: 
In achieving our objectives, we would expect to see: 

 Our senior management teams reflect the demographic spread of our staff 
groups and act as clear visible role models  

 Employees talk passionately around how they ‘fit’ within the organisation and 
how they have been supported to be their best selves 

 Sense of belonging – increased satisfaction reported through staff surveys, 
increased employee retention and reduced sickness absence and evidence of 
equitable staff development 

 All employee groups have access to the same communication tools and 
feedback channels and feel empowered to use them 

Page 22



 

15 
 

 We have robust demographic data and information that tells us who our staff are, 
and that people are open and confident to share this info. 

 Staff have confidence to raise concerns and trust that they can do this in 
confidence – building a culture of acceptance and trust 

 Managers are conveyors of our inclusive culture and show accountability and 
think Equality First 

 We have a clear place for employees to go for advice, guidance and support and 
a clear process in place to hear and respond to their concerns 

 

 
Key objectives for this workstream are: 
 

Objective(s) 

To develop an “E, D & I in all policies” approach 

Build on current E, D & I campaigns  

To develop a comprehensive inclusive recruitment process 

Expand and operationalise the work of the network groups 

NCC to be recognised both locally and nationally as a leading inclusive employer  

To improve staff engagement experience within minority groups 

Demonstrate our commitment through transparent data publication 

 
  

Page 23



 

16 
 

Systems Innovation and Automation 

 
Why is this so important to the organisation, our staff and residents? 
HR systems assist the Council in managing people, information and processes. When 
they work well, HR systems should help both managers and employees work efficiently 
while reducing errors, streamline processes, ensuring compliance and increasing 
productivity. The Council has, for several years, been reliant on systems that have been 
obtained as part of a ‘one size fits all’ system that have required a large amount of 
customisation to make them operational for the Council, and in some cases, we have 
been using systems that are not fit for purpose. Many processes have historically 
needed to be aligned to ‘fit’ the system, this does not usually support the best workflow 
or user experience and is a key aim of this strategic theme. System inefficiency impacts 
all services and work processes, it is therefore fundamental to delivering value for 
money for residents that systems are rationalised and improved. Increased use of digital 
technology to streamline processes will reduce frustration and create capacity for 
creativity and innovation. Whilst the focus is on HR/OD systems the benefits will be 
experienced organisation wide.  The aim is that managers and employees can access 
everything electronically and with ease, from anywhere. Applicants for jobs should have 
a first-rate experience via a recruitment portal, and e-learning should be accessible, 
informative and engaging. Other areas such as payroll will also be included in any 
refresh to enable them to deliver a better service for employees and reduce time-
consuming administrative processes. 
 
What we have achieved previously: 
Despite progress being dictated by delivery contracts and associated timescales we 
have: 

 Developed and enhanced links with IT for support on key areas of work 

 Progressed in house development of key systems (i.e., Flexi) 

 Removed numerous paper-based processes to make processes quicker and 
smoother 

 Secured buy in and involvement from services to understand what they want and 
need 

 Deliver a comprehensive e-learning offer. All learning can now be delivered 
virtually 

 
What advanced/new thinking is emerging in this area: 
As the way we work evolves, the way we manage our workforce must evolve to keep 
pace. To meet the needs of a modern workplace, organisations must invest in new 
technology to both improve the employee experience and drive efficiency. Latest 
developments in this area include: 

 Digital solutions to enable remote working. Remote working is now seen as the 
‘norm’ for all areas, this would have been difficult to gain buy in for in a pre-covid 
world 

 Development of Robotic Process Automation to remove the need for employees 
to undertake repetitive, mundane tasks 

 Digital solutions for traditional office processes. Paper use is becoming 
increasingly obsolete 

 An increase in the use of Artificial Intelligence (AI)  

Page 24



 

17 
 

 In person activities are now delivered virtually using technology. Online training 
and learning, virtual meetings and conferences are now all commonly undertaken 
online 

 
What are we aiming to achieve: 
We will use the People Strategy to deliver: 

 Improved systems and access for all 

 Better efficiencies in processes 

 Easy access, in both directions, between managers and staff through better 
communication channels 

 Better working experience through modern, more efficient systems, reducing time 
spent on tasks and removing the need to duplicate information 

 Better, easier to understand information and reporting functionality 

 Improved reputation for attracting new employees and through greater 
efficiencies, improved reputation and delivery of services for residents 

 Inclusivity in reaching all staffing groups 

 Cost savings – buying the right products first time that work how they are needed 
to, or if they can’t be found, developing our own in-house solutions. 

 
What success will look like 
In achieving our objectives, we would expect to see: 

 New and improved HR systems introduced and used across all areas of HR 
activity 

 Improved reporting in real time to allow managers to make timely and well-
informed people management decisions 

 Attraction of high-quality candidates and the ability to make sound recruitment 
decisions  

 More engagement with all levels of staff (visible in higher scores in staff survey)  

 Higher responsiveness  

 Greater productivity and less time wasted 

 Greater efficiency. Employees will accumulate high levels of flexi because they 
are able to complete work more in a timelier way 

 A happier workforce with lower levels of frustration linked to processes and 
systems. 

 

 
Key objectives for this workstream are: 
 

Objective(s) 

To review all current recruitment practices  

Deliver a streamlined onboarding process 

Deliver efficiencies in records management 

Develop and maintain SharePoint as a single point of information  

Review agile technology needs 

To design and implement a one-stop employee portal 

Page 25



 

18 
 

Automation review programme to deliver efficiencies and improve quality delivering fully integrated HR systems 

including inhouse Staff bank booking system 

 

 
HR Function and Structure  
 
The HR/OD team has been reconfigured and flexed to support service need and talent 
management development opportunities throughout the last twelve months and this has 
included individuals working in different roles and departments as needed. 
 
Locally, regionally and nationally, the Council’s HR/OD team is known for excellent 
leadership, knowledge and skills and our management support to our HR Schools Team 
within Northumberland continues with North Tyneside Council which provides significant 
strength to the service.  The Council’s HR/OD team regularly share best practice at 
professional conferences and with colleagues also. 
 
The services awards and accolades this year include: 
 
Apprentice of the Year - PPMA 2021  
Finalist – Megan Mitchell  
 
CIPD North East of England Awards 2021 
Excellence in Inclusivity & Diversity (shortlisted finalist) 
Excellence & Positive Impact (shortlisted finalist) 
Excellence in Leadership (shortlisted finalist) 
 
PPMA Excellence in People Management Awards 2021 
Public Sector Team of the Year (HR/OD Team) - (shortlisted finalist) 
Best Employer & TU Partnership - Winner 
Best Health & Wellbeing Initiative – Winner 
Best Inclusion & Diversity Programme/Initiative - (shortlisted finalist) 
Best Talent Programme - (shortlisted finalist) 
 
  

Page 26



 

19 
 

 
Key Performance Metrics 
 
Learning and Development Performance 
 
Performance Appraisal 
 
During 2021/2022 the final recorded % of all staff who had a performance appraisal was 
86.98%. This is over the expected level of performance of at least 85% and an increase 
from the previous year (81.08%). The appraisal performance indicator has been 
monitored closely and those managers who have not achieved 85% have remedial 
action plans in place to ensure that this is achieved for 2022/23. The HR/OD team are 
also undertaking a review of the appraisal process itself to ensure that any necessary 
improvements are made and that it remains useful to both employee and manager.  
 

Need 
(Headcount) 

Number completed. 
(Headcount) 

%  Total remaining 
(Headcount) 

% 

4932 4290 86.98 642 13.02 

 

Directorate End of year % achievement 

Adult Services Directorate 90.69% 

Chief Exec Directorate 92.98% 

Children's Services Directorate 88.91% 

Communities and Business Development 
Directorate 

88.29% 

Finance Directorate 93.82% 

Fire and Rescue 90.83% 

Planning and Local Services Directorate 76.55% 

Public Health and Community Services 
Directorate 

81.36% 

Regeneration Directorate 90.75% 

 
Statutory and Mandatory Training 
 
An annual Corporate Training Needs Analysis (TNA) has been developed for all 
Northumberland County Council staff which is monitored for compliance directly by the 
Workforce Committee to ensure that staff are offered and complete the necessary and 
relevant training to keep them safe in the workplace. 
 
The 11 core subjects that all employees are required to undertake are as follows: 

● Equality and Diversity – 3 yearly refresher 
● Manual Handling awareness – 3 yearly refresher 
● Safeguarding Adults awareness – 3 yearly refresher 
● Safeguarding Children awareness – 3 yearly refresher 
● General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) – annual refresher 
● Fire Safety awareness – annual refresher 
● Health and Safety awareness – one off 
● Stress Awareness – one off 
● FOI and Subject Access refresher – one off 
● PREVENT awareness or WRAP – one off 

Page 27



 

20 
 

● Infection Prevention and Control - one  
 
From 2022 there will also be a Climate Change training module added to the above 11 
core subjects that all employees are required to undertake as a one-off course to align 
with Carbon Neutral agenda. Information Governance modules have been updated to 
reflect the needs of the organisation to comply with governance legislation and from 
2022 will become an annual refresher with extra information regarding FOI and Subject 
Access information.  
 
The Council’s OD team have worked alongside HR colleagues to embed support for 
talent management and development at all levels across the Council. For 2021/22 we 
had a successful set of achievements in relation to Statutory and Mandatory Training 
which has been well embedded across the organisation. The overall final position for 
the Council as at 31.3.21 is outlined below. 
 

Perform
ance 

Apprais
al 21/22 

Fire 
Safety 
Aware
ness 

Gener
al Data 
Protec

tion 
Regul
ation 

(GDPR
) 

Equa
lity & 
Diver
sity 

Manu
al 

Hand
ling  

Safegua
rding 

Adults 
and 

Childre
n 

Health 
and 

Safety 
Aware
ness 

Stress 
Aware
ness 

FOI 
& 

Subj
ect 
Acc
ess 

PREV
ENT 
or 

WRAP 

Infectio
n 

Preven
tion 
and 

Control  

86.98% 87.79
% 

85.54
% 

93.03
% 

91.89
% 

92.09% 96.86
% 

91.24
% 

92.1
5% 

95.70
% 

91.26% 

 
Any compliance/performance issues are raised by the Interim Service Director of 
Human Resources with the relevant Head of Service.  
 
Personal and Professional Development 
 
The ‘About You Review’ has been well received across the organisation and we have 
continued to use this for appraisal to allow managers to have a meaningful conversation 
with their employees.  HR/OD developed and implemented a Manager’s Induction to 
support newly appointment managers and acted as a refresher for longstanding 
managers. Additional induction sessions were provided to support managers who 
Tupe'd into NCC to help them to navigate our systems, processes and policies.  
Corporate Induction sessions for new starters continue twice a month. 
 
During 2021/2022 the Council has continued to successfully deliver several initiatives to 
support the talent management and development alongside local initiatives by each 
department and these are: 
  

● Over 600 Apprenticeships Standards are available from levels 1 – 7, 78 
different routes are being used within NCC. The Councils Public Service 
Duty (PSD) is set to have 2.3% of the workforce as apprentices and 
currently the Council’s figure is 1.74% of the workforce who are 
apprentices. This figure is lower due to covid and limited recruitment. 

● During 2021/2022 we had 2 further cohorts of recruitment and targeted 
recruitment for the Children’s Residential Workforce.   

○ Cohort 4 introduced 25 new apprentices to the council.   

Page 28



 

21 
 

○ Cohort 5 advertised for 60 positions however due to current market 
pressures only managed to secure 28 apprentices a further factor 
being reviewed is the apprenticeship wage level.   

○ The Children’s Residential Workforce recruitment has allowed 9 
apprentices to join the units and to be supported to complete a 
Level 4 apprenticeship. 

● Apprenticeship Week 2021 was well supported, working closely with 
colleagues within Communications to produce a Northumberland based 
Campaign.  We had a TV advert which went live simultaneously as we 
launched our apprenticeship vacancies, the advert had a vast number of 
views.  Face-to-face events were also held alongside a virtual 
apprenticeship event.  The virtual event saw a reduction in interest against 
the face to face event.  The Comms Team provided an excellent media 
campaign gaining a great amount of attention, sadly did not generate the 
desired number of applications.   

● We have taken 2 National Graduate Development Programme (NGDP) 
graduates into Northumberland, placements have been in Digital 
Inclusion, HR/Recruitment and the Policy Team.  We are also looking to 
recruit from Cohort 24. 

● 13 of our Level 7 Senior Leaders Master Degree Apprenticeship passed 
their apprenticeship with merits and distinctions, and we are continuing to 
support a further 11 employees on their level 7 journey.  

● The 9 employees on the level 6 Chartered Management Institute (CMI) - 
apprenticeship are entering through the gateway progress and awaiting to 
complete their End Point Assessment.  

 
Case Management  
 
The Council’s HR Advisers work on a ratio of 1:410 employees currently and the case 
profiles for 2020/2021 are as follows: 

 

No of 
cases 
2020/2021 

Chief 
Execut

ives 

Finance Fire and 
Rescue 

Commu
nities & 
Busines

s 
Develop

ment 

Plannin
g and 
Local 

Service
s 

Public 
Health 

and 
Commu

nity 
Service

s 

Adul
t 

Servi
ces 

Child
ren’s 
Servi
ces 

Total 

Disciplinar
y Cases 

0 5 1 0 16 3 6 8 39 

Grievance/ 
Dignity at 
Work 
cases 

0 3 0 1 1 1 3 2 11 

Page 29



 

22 
 

Health & 
Wellbeing 
policy 
cases  

Review 
1 – 19 

Review 
2 – 1 

RM1 – 86 

RM2 – 25 

RM3 – 5 

RM4 - 4 

RM1 – 55 

RM2 -5  

RM3 – 7  

RM4 - 1 

 

RM1 – 61 

RM2 – 25 

RM3 – 5 

RM4 - 1 

 

RM1 - 

125 

RM2 – 

19 

RM3 - 5 

RM4 - 3 

 

RM1 – 

84 

RM2 – 

14 

 RM3 – 

14 

 RM4 - 4 

 

RM1 
– 218 
RM2 
– 55 
RM3 
– 43 

RM4 - 
8 

RM1 – 

171 

RM2 – 

67 

RM3 – 

14 

RM4 - 

2 

 

RM1 – 

824 

RM2 – 

207 

RM3 – 

93 RM4 

- 23 

 

Total 20 128 69 93 169 120 333 264 1196 

Please note the Health and Wellbeing policy follows a 4 Review Hearing process – numbers are broken down into the 
relevant review stages 1-4. 

 
Mediation  

NCC mediation supports local resolution before progressing to formal processes. Our 

mediation offer is a confidential and voluntary process which brings together employees 

who are experiencing problems in a work-based relationship. Mediation is offered as a 

service by employee volunteers who are accredited, trained mediators.  NCC currently 

has 20 fully trained mediators from both HR and other services across the council. 

Since January 2020 the mediation service has worked closely with the mediation 

service in the Northumbria NHS Foundation Trust and has jointly financed refresher 

training in March 2020. Our cohort of trained coaches have received 17 nominations for 

coaching from Council employees that result in an average of 3-5 sessions with a coach 

for career, leadership or personal/professional development coaching in 2021/2022. 

 
Key Projects in 2021/2022  
 
TUPE transfer from NHS  
 

 For several years, the Council worked in partnership with the local NHS Trust, 
Northumbria Healthcare Foundation Trust (NHCT), to deliver integrated health 
and social care in Northumberland.  

 In March 2021 it was announced that the formal partnership agreement would 
end on 30 September 2021 and on 1 October 2021 c900 employees would be 
affected. In July 2021 it was confirmed that certain services would transfer to 
Harrogate NHS Trust. The remaining 650 Adult Social Care employees would 
TUPE transfer to the Council, increasing overall headcount by approximately 
15%.   

 To achieve this, we formulated a series of comprehensive safe day 1 plans 
ensuring operational continuity and support to staff in the lead up to the transfer. 
The scale of the change made the transferring staff feel vulnerable, particularly 
because they were moving to a unknown entity in the Council.  

 We undertook to reassure staff. One of the biggest concerns was that NHS terms 
were more favourable. To show how this was simply untrue, an exercise to 
compare T&Cs was undertaken and a published commitment made that no 
employee would be at detriment because of the transfer. A substantial job 
evaluation (JE) exercise was undertaken to evaluate all transferring roles under 

Page 30



 

23 
 

the Council’s JE scheme. 76 posts were identified for evaluation and HR worked 
with Trade Union (TU) colleagues to facilitate the JE panels. 

  A personalised welcome letter, including JE outcomes, was issued to all 
employees shortly before the transfer. This provided transferring staff with 
reassurance that their T&Cs were protected and all the relevant information that 
they needed, so that, if they wished to, they could adopt NCC T&Cs from day 1.  
The Council engaged at an early stage with both sets of TUs. The Lead HR 
Representative attended NHCT organised TU partnership meetings to address 
queries, concerns and provide reassurance. 

 To facilitate open and effective communication and to support staff, we set up a 
dedicated email inbox, Yammer site and telephone hotline. We ensured that all 
enquiries were promptly responded to. Newsletters and FAQs were published on 
a dedicated website that also included other regularly updated content.  

 Tailored induction and drop-in sessions were delivered including HR Q&As, 
corporate / management induction, health and wellbeing, staff network and 
learning drop-ins. This set of actions proved a powerful tool in engaging with staff 
directly so that they felt supported and listened to and were assured that we 
understood how significant a change this represented to staff on an individual 
and personal level.   This close working relationship was clearly apparent across 
the two respective HR departments. 

 The transfer became a whole team effort as the transfer date approached and 
transfer related work ramped up. To support this, operational priorities were 
reconfigured, and key resource was co-opted to the project delivery team. All 
participants, regardless of the type or size of their contribution, played a key role 
in delivering a successful transfer and we are immensely proud of the dedication 
and commitment demonstrated by every team member.  

  Feedback from transferring staff has been positive and gratitude has been 
expressed to all support services but particularly HR for the huge effort that went 
into supporting them to ‘land safely’. A third of those that transferred have 
already adopted the Council’s terms and conditions. Staff have embraced 
Council values, begun to integrate, and have fully availed themselves of benefits 
and employee-focused initiatives that the council offers. 

 
WorkSmart Pack Distribution 
 
The reaction across every one of our services to the ‘new ways of working’ caused by 

the Coronavirus Pandemic, has been unprecedented.  Staff pulled together to ensure 

that residents are looked after and were able to contact us; to receive regular, often 

essential, services; to feel cared for and about; and to be safe in their homes and 

environments. Our Leadership Team felt very strongly that it was important to 

acknowledge this effort and the adjustments staff have made to do their jobs from 

wherever they’ve needed to (homes, other offices, different buildings, coffee shops, 

libraries, depots, even cars!), and alongside other rewards and recognition, 

commissioned the creation of the WorkSmart Pack with the intention of supporting staff 

to work in an agile way. 

These are packs of equipment to enable staff to work from anywhere, and includes:  

 a laptop case and mouse-mat  

 notebook and pen 

Page 31



 

24 
 

 water bottle  

 facemask  

 hand gel  

 beanie hat 

(All branded to emphasise our #TeamNorthumberland ethos) 

Working in the 5th largest and the most rural county in England gave a challenge to 

distribute packs to the 4700 staff involved was a mammoth undertaking.   

The HR/OD Business Team were responsible for planning, organising and managing 

each element of the complex logistics involved in this project, alongside a very tight 

timescale.  The Communications Team publicised the rewards in mid-November, and 

the wish from Leadership was to have these packs to staff by the Christmas break. As 

many staff were working from either home or a different base, and those homes or 

workplaces are spread right across the county, it was important to offer everyone the 

option of collecting their packs from somewhere convenient. The Business Team wrote 

to all staff to gather the information needed to ensure staff received the pack in the 

easiest way possible: 

 Preferred collection site – 

 A colleague or manager who might be able to collect on their behalf  

 Their managers contact details in case we needed anything  

 The size of hoodie they would like 

Once we had the numbers, we could then appreciate the volume of people who wanted 

to collect from each place.  Considering that there was just 2 full weeks before 

Christmas to issue the packs to as many people as possible, we needed to balance the 

numbers of collection against staff availability to manage the issue of packs, and to 

maintain a Covid safe environment it was essential that the collection times were 

staggered.  We emailed all staff individually, and gave them an allocated group date, 

time and collection point coordinated by team (where possible) – the purpose of this 

was so that they were able to liaise between themselves to organise a bulk collection if 

that worked better for them. 

Lists of names, times, details were prepared, along with the bulk deliveries of hoodies 

and packs for each location, and staff from across the organisation helped to get these 

delivered out to various sites from Berwick to Hexham; some came in vans, and large 

SUVs, and some came in small family cars -- it’s amazing how many boxes you can get 

in a mini-clubman! 

The logistics plan resulted in the arrangement and management of: 

 57 separate collection points,  

 Between 12 and 1700 individual collections at sites 

 Allocated collection slots spread over 2 weeks 

This could not have been achieved in such a small period without the collaboration of 

many different teams across the organisation.  

Recruitment and Retention 

Page 32



 

25 
 

 
Towards the end of the 2021/22 period, it became apparent that there were several 
service areas across the council suffering significant pressures due to not being able to 
attract and secure applicants for their vacant roles and/or losing staff to external 
competitors. A task and finish group has now been established and will seek to address 
the challenges faced by the Council across 4 workstreams: 
 

 Promotion of NCC as Employer - To attract candidates we need to effectively 

promote ourselves as an employer of choice. We need to be able to use effective 

methods and techniques to draw candidates to us and 'sell' our proposition.   

 Process improvement - To attract and engage candidates we need to have a 

smooth, concise process with the candidate at the centre. Our processes need to 

be simple, efficient, responsive and intuitive. We need to understand the user 

experience and learn from best practice across other organisations.  

 Sustainable careers - To attract and retain staff NCC should offer opportunities 

for rewarding and sustainable careers that benefit both the individual and the 

organisation. Attention should be particularly focused on sustainability in hard to 

recruit to areas and developing talent / skill as an internal resource.  

 Pay / Terms and conditions - To be able to attract and retain staff, NCC need to 

ensure that they offer as competitive employment package as possible. NCC 

need to be able to respond to shifts in market value for skills whilst maintaining 

equality and fairness but also ensuring affordability and value for money. 

 

Workstream Leads have been appointed and input from stakeholders across all 

services will assist in the delivery of objectives. We have also been fortunate enough 

to have secured specialist assistance to provide strategic recruitment expertise. 
 

 
Sickness Absence 
 
Sickness absence for 2021/22 had an annual cost of £4.68m which compared to the 
previous year 2020/2021 (£3.02m) is an increase of £1.62m. The average number of 
FTE lost days per FTE for 2021/22 is 10.00 which compared to the previous year 
2020/21 (FTE lost days per FTE were 8.03) is an increase of 1.97 days per FTE. The 
Council has always had an ambitious aim to achieve a sickness absence level of 7.5 
days per FTE.  Part of the reason for the increase in sickness absence is the increase in 

Page 33



 

26 
 

headcount due to the transfer of staff from Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation 
Trust in October 2021 which has significantly increased absence levels within Adult 
Services.  
 
The WFC report highlights specific trends and areas with high absence levels in each 
service area. Departments are supported to understand their own data and areas 
discussed to look at how they can best deal with reducing absence. Mental health 
support is now part of the health and wellbeing process through the routine use of 
Wellbeing Action Plans and Stress risk Assessments for employees. A Psychological 
Wellbeing Coordinator has been appointed to in December 2021 to support employees 
facing difficulties that might not require clinical medical support. Questions for managers 
are included in the supervision proforma to record all aspects of an individual's 
wellbeing by the manager on a regular basis. 
 
Organisational summary view of sickness absence 
 

 
To give some context the rate of COVID infection within Northumberland over a similar 

time is shown below.  

 

 
 

 

Page 34



 

27 
 

The cost of sickness absence by Directorate (see tables below) similarly shows the 

greatest areas being Adult Services, Planning and Local Services and Public Health 

and Community Services where the headcount is significantly higher. It is recognised 

that 47% of all staff assignments have had some absence due to sickness during the 

last twelve months (as outlined below) which is the same as the previous year. 

 

 
 

Chief Executive Directorate 
 

 
 
Finance Directorate 

 

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 43.51 1.62% £5,943.05 Working Days 12M 34,885.08              April £5,943.05

May 32.14 1.26% £4,492.33 Working Days Last M 3,614.22                May £4,492.33

June 476.10 3.55% £57,267.19 Avg Lst FTE dys per FTE 14.20 June £57,267.19

July 572.53 4.25% £68,930.42 % of days lost last 12 m 6.39% July £68,930.42

August 595.31 4.62% £71,392.28 % of days lost last m 1.50% August £71,392.28

September 123.95 1.91% £16,061.04 September £16,061.04

October 78.29 2.07% £9,937.81 Total FTE (from snapshot) 157.14                   October £9,937.81

November 80.09 2.06% £10,274.14 November £10,274.14

December 67.43 1.89% £8,705.42 December £8,705.42

January 68.85 2.06% £8,973.51 January £8,973.51

February 38.31 1.20% £5,123.36 Avg Salary £28,052.36 February £5,123.36

March 54.2 1.50% £7,289.14 Avg Daily Rate £107.60 March £7,289.14

Total 2,230.71                 £274,389.70

Avg monthly 185.89                    £22,865.81

Average Cost per month = £22,865.81 Average FTE Days Lost per FTE 14.20

Total Estimated cost of sickness = £274,389.70 % Days Lost to Sickness (12 Months) 6.39%

% Days Lost to Sickness (Month) 1.50%

1.62%
1.26%

3.55%

4.25%

4.62%

1.91%
2.07% 2.06%

1.89%
2.06%

1.20%
1.50%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 35



 

28 
 

 
 

Fire and Rescue  

 

 
 

Communities and Business Development Directorate 

  

 
  

 

 

 

Planning and Local Services Directorate 

 

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 94.06 2.00% £10,732.53 Working Days 12M 111,506.16            April £10,732.53

May 96.69 2.16% £11,002.52 Working Days Last M 11,552.44              May £11,002.52

June 78.87 1.52% £8,980.19 Avg Lst FTE dys per FTE 5.09 June £8,980.19

July 98.74 1.90% £11,270.59 % of days lost last 12 m 2.29% July £11,270.59

August 93.22 1.88% £10,624.97 % of days lost last m 3.61% August £10,624.97

September 259.42 3.03% £26,315.06 September £26,315.06

October 266.81 2.54% £28,657.73 Total FTE (from snapshot) 502.28                   October £28,657.73

November 283.78 2.55% £30,463.33 November £30,463.33

December 265.88 2.51% £28,553.76 Avg Salary £28,003.39 December £28,553.76

January 291.72 2.88% £31,190.06 Avg Daily Rate £107.41 January £31,190.06

February 312.40 3.10% £33,821.14 February £33,821.14

March 416.97 3.60% £45,434.61 March £45,434.61

Total 2,558.56                 £277,046.49

Avg monthly 213.21                    £23,087.21

Average Cost per month = £23,087.21 Average FTE Days Lost per FTE 5.09

Total Estimated cost of sickness = £277,046.49 % Days Lost to Sickness (12 Months) 2.29%

% Days Lost to Sickness (Month) 3.61%

2.00%
2.16%

1.52%

1.90% 1.88%

3.03%

2.54% 2.55% 2.51%

2.88%
3.10%

3.60%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 101.16 1.55% £8,223.40 Working Days 12M 73,921.56              April £8,223.40

May 124.55 2.01% £10,158.66 Working Days Last M 7,658.54                May £10,158.66

June 188.23 2.53% £15,277.45 Avg Lst FTE dys per FTE 8.72 June £15,277.45

July 279.41 3.76% £22,572.35 % of days lost last 12 m 3.93% July £22,572.35

August 329.30 4.63% £26,224.88 % of days lost last m 4.28% August £26,224.88

September 274.45 3.63% £22,104.10 September £22,104.10

October 223.36 3.63% £17,895.24 Total FTE (from snapshot) 332.98                   October £17,895.24

November 257.00 3.41% £20,485.50 November £20,485.50

December 334.00 4.78% £26,703.16 December £26,703.16

January 221.68 3.28% £17,844.81 Avg Salary £20,888.44 January £17,844.81

February 242.51 3.59% £19,552.64 Avg Daily Rate £80.12 February £19,552.64

March 328.01 4.28% £26,725.57 March £26,725.57

Total 2,903.66                 £233,767.76

Avg monthly 241.97                    £19,480.65

1.55%

2.01%

2.53%

3.76%

4.63%

3.63% 3.63%
3.41%

4.78%

3.28%
3.59%

4.28%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 186.75 2.49% £20,367.41 April £20,367.41

May 171.43 2.40% £18,644.44 May £18,644.44

June 139.17 1.90% £14,699.83 June £14,699.83

July 173.06 2.28% £18,272.86 Avg FTE Days 7.67 July £18,272.86

August 146.07 1.99% £15,359.79 AWD 12M 64,999.38                     August £15,359.79

September 157.44 3.04% £15,863.20 AWD M 6,734.17                       September £15,863.20

October 187.14 3.32% £18,991.48 % 12 M 3.46% October £18,991.48

November 227.97 3.73% £23,078.21 % Last M 2.85% November £23,078.21

December 284.63 4.74% £28,651.40 December £28,651.40

January 207.23 3.64% £20,825.99 Avg Salary £20,457.69 January £20,825.99

February 172.92 2.98% £17,718.13 Avg Daily Rate £78.47 February £17,718.13

March 192.12 2.85% £19,776.86 March £19,776.86

2245.93

292.79

Average Cost per month = £19,354.13 Average FTE Days Lost per FTE 7.67

Total Estimated cost of sickness = £232,249.60 % Days Lost to Sickness (12 Months) 3.46%

% Days Lost to Sickness (Month) 2.85%

2.49% 2.40%

1.90%
2.28%

1.99%

3.04%
3.32%

3.73%

4.74%

3.64%

2.98% 2.85%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 36



 

29 
 

 
 
Public Health and Community Services Directorate 

 

 
 
Regeneration Directorate 

 

 
 
Adult Services Directorate 

 

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 591.57 3.49% £54,995.57 April £54,995.57

May 508.97 3.12% £47,273.78 May £47,273.78

June 660.26 3.30% £62,921.56 June £62,921.56

July 707.50 3.53% £67,400.13 Avg FTE Days 9.38 July £67,400.13

August 745.37 3.92% £71,028.25 AWD 12M 210,906.66                  August £71,028.25

September 898.03 4.19% £86,107.92 AWD M 21,850.69                     September £86,107.92

October 887.14 4.36% £85,265.58 % 12 M 4.22% October £85,265.58

November 801.14 3.83% £76,722.74 % Last M 3.55% November £76,722.74

December 932.02 4.65% £89,085.79 December £89,085.79

January 723.68 3.79% £69,055.33 Avg Salary £25,058.02 January £69,055.33

February 679.83 3.56% £65,461.72 Avg Daily Rate £96.11 February £65,461.72

March 774.94 3.55% £75,453.88 March £75,453.88

8910.45

950.03

Average Cost per month = £70,897.69 Average FTE Days Lost per FTE 9.38

Total Estimated cost of sickness = £850,772.25 % Days Lost to Sickness (12 Months) 4.22%

% Days Lost to Sickness (Month) 3.55%

3.49%
3.12%

3.30%
3.53%

3.92%
4.19%

4.36%

3.83%

4.65%

3.79%
3.56% 3.55%

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 0.00 0.00% £0.00 April £0.00

May 0.00 0.00% £0.00 May £0.00

June 0.00 0.00% £0.00 June £0.00

July 0.00 0.00% £0.00 Avg FTE Days 8.40 July £0.00

August 0.00 0.00% £0.00 AWD 12M 85,565.46                     August £0.00

September 408.55 5.51% £45,704.88 AWD M 8,864.89                       September £45,704.88

October 435.59 5.65% £48,720.92 % 12 M 3.78% October £48,720.92

November 496.38 5.93% £55,851.20 % Last M 6.01% November £55,851.20

December 458.16 5.72% £51,433.42 December £51,433.42

January 475.91 6.26% £53,363.98 January £53,363.98

February 428.35 5.62% £48,715.51 Avg Salary £29,161.22 February £48,715.51

March 532.98 5.98% £60,967.16 Avg Daily Rate £111.85 March £60,967.16

3235.92

385.43

Average Cost per month = £30,396.42 Average FTE Days Lost per FTE 8.40

Total Estimated cost of sickness = £364,757.07 % Days Lost to Sickness (12 Months) 3.78%

% Days Lost to Sickness (Month) 6.01%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

5.51% 5.65%
5.93% 5.72%

6.26%

5.62%
5.98%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 0.00 0.00% £0.00 April £0.00

May 0.00 0.00% £0.00 May £0.00

June 0.00 0.00% £0.00 June £0.00

July 0.00 0.00% £0.00 July £0.00

August 0.00 0.00% £0.00 Avg FTE Days 4.44 August £0.00

September 16.00 1.50% £2,384.60 AWD 12M 11,288.70                     September £2,384.60

October 27.00 2.58% £4,081.78 AWD M 1,169.55                       October £4,081.78

November 53.00 4.83% £7,992.71 % 12 M 2.00% November £7,992.71

December 42.00 4.01% £6,346.53 % Last M 2.05% December £6,346.53

January 41.67 4.35% £6,385.69 January £6,385.69

February 22.00 2.30% £3,403.33 Avg Salary £39,413.56 February £3,403.33

March 24.00 2.05% £3,696.77 Avg Daily Rate £151.18 March £3,696.77

225.67

50.85

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

1.50%

2.58%

4.83%

4.01%
4.35%

2.30%
2.05%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u

n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 37



 

30 
 

 
 
Children’s Services Directorate 

 

 
 
Work is ongoing to promote wellbeing with staff as we progressed through the Covid 19 
pandemic and relevant lockdown periods. Outside of these parameters the key health 
and wellbeing focus remains as: 
 

● Mental health 

● Musculoskeletal  
● Healthy lifestyle 

● Financial wellbeing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 582.01 5.60% £56,050.61 April £56,050.61

May 590.49 6.00% £56,818.64 May £56,818.64

June 525.80 4.62% £50,648.77 June £50,648.77

July 602.04 5.34% £57,986.18 July £57,986.18

August 590.71 5.48% £56,926.64 Avg FTE Days 14.28 August £56,926.64

September 538.15 7.23% £51,491.90 AWD 12M 185,325.60                  September £51,491.90

October 1241.98 7.02% £133,632.96 AWD M 19,200.40                     October £133,632.96

November 1584.14 8.54% £170,695.49 % 12 M 6.43% November £170,695.49

December 1480.76 8.41% £159,841.81 % Last M 7.88% December £159,841.81

January 1402.04 8.42% £151,925.05 January £151,925.05

February 1271.53 7.62% £138,554.46 Avg Salary £28,052.36 February £138,554.46

March 1513.86 7.88% £166,199.42 Avg Daily Rate £107.60 March £166,199.42

11923.51049

834.80

5.60%
6.00%

4.62%

5.34% 5.48%

7.23% 7.02%

8.54% 8.41% 8.42%

7.62% 7.88%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u

n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

MONTH FTE Lost Days % Days Lost Estimated Cost Month
Estimated Cost per 

Month

April 468.72 2.80% £56,200.93 April £56,200.93

May 501.11 3.16% £60,017.18 May £60,017.18

June 825.42 4.44% £99,089.34 June £99,089.34

July 940.51 5.02% £113,125.57 Avg FTE Days 10.26 July £113,125.57

August 722.07 4.06% £87,048.01 AWD 12M 194,709.54                  August £87,048.01

September 747.49 3.97% £90,641.20 AWD M 20,172.61                     September £90,641.20

October 918.68 5.09% £111,454.76 % 12 M 4.62% October £111,454.76

November 960.81 5.06% £116,169.32 % Last M 3.49% November £116,169.32

December 751.09 4.12% £90,702.04 December £90,702.04

January 774.56 4.45% £93,568.97 Avg Salary £31,629.74 January £93,568.97

February 682.98 3.91% £83,021.87 Avg Daily Rate £121.32 February £83,021.87

March 705.02 3.49% £85,850.69 March £85,850.69

8998.46

877.07

2.80%
3.16%

4.44%

5.02%

4.06% 3.97%

5.09% 5.06%

4.12%
4.45%

3.91%
3.49%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

A
p
ri

l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g

u
s
t

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r

D
e

c
e
m

b
e

r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h

Page 38



 

31 
 

 

 
 
Sickness Absence costs comparative 2021/22 

* In September 2021 the Directorate structure of the Council changed and direct 
comparisons with the previous financial year are not possible. 

 
Sickness Absence Benchmarking - Average Lost FTE Days per FTE 
 
Previous year's Cabinet Report recommendations were to include benchmarking data 
from other unitary authorities and Northumberland compared with all English Unitary 
Authorities. However, the latest benchmarking data we can access is that of 2020/212.  

 

Year Northumberland 

Minimum for All 

English unitary 

authorities 

Mean for All 

English unitary 

authorities 

Maximum for All 

English unitary 

authorities 

2021/22 10.00 N/A N/A N/A 

2020/21 8.03 N/A 7.9 N/A 

                                                 
2 due to COVID-19 LGA HR benchmarking has been on hold since Q3 19/20 the figures in the report are the latest 

available figures the LGA have published. 

  

*Absence 
costs 

2021/22 

Absence 
costs 

Ave days 
lost per 

FTE 21/22 

Ave days 
lost per 

FTE  20/21 

% days lost 
to sickness 

21/22 

% days 
lost to 

sickness 
20/21 

Adult Services 
Directorate 

£1,250,771.94 £575,915.17  14.28   11.64 6.43%  5.24%  

Chief Exec 
Directorate 

£274,389.70 £18,416.28  14.20   1.02 6.39%  0.46%  

Children's 
Services 
Directorate 

£1,086,889.88 £728,939.76   5.09 7.49  2.29%  3.37%  

Communities 
and Business 
Development 
Directorate 

£232,249.60  n/a  7.67 n/a  3.46%   n/a 

Finance 
Directorate 

£277,046.49 £315,634.70  5.09 13.05  2.29% 5.88%  

Fire and 
Rescue 

£233,767.76  £170,086.90 8.72   6.89 3.93%   3.11% 

Planning and 
Local Services 
Directorate 

£850,772.25 £591,091.79  7.67   8.01 3.46%  3.61%  

Public Health 
and 
Community 
Services 
Directorate 

£364,757.07  n/a 9.38    n/a 4.22%   n/a 

Regeneration 
Directorate 

£34,291.42 n/a  4.44  n/a 2.00%  n/a 

Page 39



 

32 
 

2018/19 11.2 5.4 10.1 13.1 

 
Northumberland compared with CIPFA ‘Nearest Neighbours’ 
 

Year Northumberland 

Minimum for 

Northumberland 

CIPFA nearest 

neighbours 

Mean for 

Northumberland 

CIPFA nearest 

neighbours 

Maximum for 

Northumberland 

CIPFA nearest 

neighbours 

2021/22 10.00 N/A N/A N/A 

2020/21 8.03 7.1 10.20 14.1 

2018/19 11.2 9.3 12.2 14.3 

 
Northumberland CIPFA nearest neighbours include the following Local Authorities: East 
Riding of Yorkshire, Wirral, Isle of Wight, Barnsley, Wakefield, Rotherham, Dudley and 
St. Helens. 
 
The data for previous years does show we are running at the lower end of the results 
compared to others.   

 
The Personal Risk Assessment exercise that began in June 2020 and was refreshed in 
February 2021 provided managerial advice and guidance to those service areas where 
employees had rated themselves low (1-5) on the wellbeing scale of 1-10. We 
continued with another COVID survey in Feb 2022 and the results were positive in 
views of wellbeing and support from employees. 
 

 January 2021 January 2022 
Overall NCC Staff Completion Rate 35.9% 34.6% 

‘Communication between the executive 

leaders and staff is effective’ 

 Strongly Agree/Agree 

 Neutral 

 Disagree / Strongly Disagree 

 

 

 84.8% 

 13.3% 

 1.9% 

 

 

 77.3% 

 20% 

 2.7% 

‘Have Found the Chief Executives 

Bulleting Useful’ - Yes / To some extent 

98.8% 97.7% 

How would you rate your mental 

wellbeing 

 4 or below 

 5 or 6 

 7+ 

 

 

 11.1% 

 24.6% 

 64.2% 

 

 

 6.7% 

 16.8% 

 76.5% 

In the last month, I have NOT looked 

forward to work - agree 

26.4% 25% 

In the last month, I have felt enthusiastic 

about my job - disagree 

8.5% 5% 

In the last month, time has passed 

quickly - disagree 

8.5% 5% 

Page 40



 

33 
 

In the last month, I have been able to 

provide the service I aspire to - Yes   

68.4% 70.6% 

Do you feel supported by your line 

manager? - No 

1.84% 1.37% 

 
 
HR/OD Helpline 
 
While the HR/OD function has operated a helpline for several years, during the 
pandemic resources were re-arranged putting in place a rota within the team to expand 
capacity during periods where government announcement were rapidly evolving.  This 
enabled the team to provide calm and reassurance to staff and managers who were 
struggling with work-based queries.  All calls and advice were initially logged to identify 
any common themes and frequently asked questions were updated daily with 
organisational decisions against each individual query throughout the pandemic and 
periods of lockdown.  
 
Number of calls received through 2021/22: 

Directorate 
Number of 

calls 

Adult Services Directorate 296 

Chief Exec Directorate 28 

Children's Services Directorate 224 

Communities and Business Development Directorate 65 

Finance Directorate 108 

Fire and Rescue 3 

Planning and Local Services Directorate 193 

Public Health and Community Services Directorate 97 

Regeneration Directorate 12 

Total 1026 

 
COVID-19 Hotline 
 
During the second wave of the pandemic the HR/OD team worked with colleagues from 
Public Health in setting up a COVID-19 Hotline. Members of the HR/OD team were 
trained in how to deal with workplace outbreaks and took responsibility for always 
manning the hotline.  
 
To ensure that all actions were appropriately taken when the possibility of a workplace 
outbreak occurred the following measures were put into place: 

 Ascertained if the case was symptomatic or confirmed positive, if so, appropriate 
advice was given regarding the individual and their family about testing and 
isolation periods. 

 Discussed with manager when they had last been at work, who they had been 
working with and where, then determining if ‘contact’ under the PHE definitions 
had occurred. 

 If yes, any other employees that had been in contact were sent home and told to 
isolate for the relevant time-period. 

Page 41



 

34 
 

 If no, but other employees had been in the same workplace at the same time, 
those employees were written to and told they did not need to isolate to try and 
ease any concerns. 

 Occasionally, there were causes for concern in terms of employees not adhering 
to social distancing and/or wearing suitable PPE and those issues were 
addressed via management intervention. 

 The location of cases was monitored and if there were more than 2 cases in the 
same workplace in quick succession, a review was undertaken between HR, 
Public Health, Health and Safety and Public Protection to determine if any further 
action was needed. 

 
From its inception in on 9 October 2020 to the time of writing, the hotline has fielded 
1056 phone calls. Graphs below demonstrate the breakdown of when the peak times of 
daily rates of calls were, and from which directorates per month. 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 42



 

35 
 

Agency Staffing 
 
Numbers of agency staffing are regularly reviewed by the Workforce Committee.  We 
continue to work with local authority colleagues across the region to ensure we set 
standardised frameworks and agreed rates, particularly for challenging areas such as 
social workers etc which has proved positive for the Northeast in managing the 
challenges that agency staffing costs and quality pose. 
 
An Internal Staffing Bank now running to reduce the requirement for agency workers, 
offer staff the opportunity to register for work at any department/area within the Council 
(dependent upon their skills and experience) to ensure we build a more flexible 
workforce and reduce existing costs over time.  The Staff Bank was started in late 2020 
and progression of work was hindered by the restrictions of the pandemic. Work will 
continue to take place to ensure the use of the staff bank has been explored before 
authorisation to use agency is approved. 
 

No. of temporary staffing requests 2020/21 2021/22 

Staff Bank 12 111 

Agency 596 490 

 
 

Staff Bank Spend 2021/22  

Directorate Bank Staff Count 

Sum of Hours 

Claimed 

Sum of Total 

Oncosts (+21%) 

Adults and Children's Services 29 4992.56 £76,344.40 

Communities/Business 

Development 
17 

4697.34 £63,170.12 

Corporate Governance 1 88.16 £1,130.36 

Finance 3 287.66 £3,650.13 

HR/OD and People Services 5 777.98 £12,797.70 

Planning and Local Services 7 922.55 £12,485.99 

Public Health and Housing 1 745.07 £9,182.20 

Total 63 12511.31 £178,760.90 

 

Agency Spend 2021/22 

Directorate Agency Staff Count Sum of Total Cost 

Adult Services 3 £72,842 

Childrens Services 21 £404,502 

Corporate Resources 20 £377,494 

Corporate Services 1 £4,061 

Health and Wellbeing 160 £1,619,963 

Housing Services 76 £1,319,311 

Local Services 72 £1,707,476 

Neighbourhood Services 1 £46,051 

Total 354 £5,551,700 

 

Page 43



 

36 
 

A review of agency use has been commissioned and is being delivered by the Council’s 
Innovation and Improvement service. This review seeks to understand the extent and 
cost of use of agency staff and will make recommendations on how spend can be 
reduced and greater self-sufficiency can be achieved. An assessment of the viability 
and cost effectiveness of the Staff Bank will form part of the review. 
 
Fixed Term Contracts 
 
Fixed term contracts are now monitored monthly by the Workforce Committee using a 
RAG rating so there is notice for those that are due to end immediately and those that 
are longer term. All fixed term contracts and honoraria have an end date so that they 
are regularly reviewed.   
 
Equality and Diversity 
 
The Council has very well-established staff networks LGBT, Enable Disability, Autism 
Spectrum Disorder, Black Asian and Minority Ethic, Menopause, Mental Health and 
Carers Network groups. Two new network groups have been set up Armed Forces 
Network to support those employees that have been in Armed forces and Apprentice 
Network to provide a space for apprentices to meet others and lessen isolation.  The 
network groups contribute actively to the development of a more inclusive culture by 
commenting on policy, leading on a broad range of ED&I campaigns working closely 
with Communications staff and contributing to positive staff engagement.  
 
Several the network groups have been trained to be mentors for lived experience and 

will be integrated into the councils’ mentoring and coaching offer to give staff access to 

the lived experience of staff with one or more protected characteristic. 

 
The Council has produced its Gender Pay Gap Report and continues to have one of the 
lowest Gender Pay Gaps within public sector organisations across the region. The 
Council’s Gender Pay Gap report is now published on the Council’s website alongside 
other documents that demonstrate the council's position in relation to ED&I. 
 
Staff Survey Data 
 
The Staff Survey was last undertaken in 2019.   Picker Institute were the provider of the 
survey in 2019 and given some challenges with the quality of the data analysis, the 
Council decided to introduce quarterly COVID-19 surveys to replace the annual staff 
survey throughout the pandemic. The department action plan working groups continue 
to meet monthly to continue with the longer-range actions and to understand results of 
the shorter surveys. Moving forward HR/OD propose to provide the first staff survey in 
2022 since 2019 using in house processes and data analysis. Timescales will be every 
18 months to allow for actions from surveys to be undertaken by services. During the 
18-month period two short surveys 6 months apart will be undertaken with focussed 
themes to get an understanding of workforce feelings particularly regarding wellbeing.    
 
Living Leader  

The Living Leader Programme is a personal leadership programme that has been 

bought in with Executive Team support to encourage simple, effective and sustainable 

Page 44



 

37 
 

leadership. An initial cohort of 14 employees have been trained in the programme with a 

Train the Trainer programme running for 9 staff to cascade through the organisation. 

 As this is a licensed programme 564 licenses will be supported at a variety of levels 

throughout the organisation.  Initial training has taken place during January to March 

2022 with the cohort of Trainers being fully trained by July 2022. Objectives for the 

programme will be increase of self-awareness, recognise, and choose Leadership style, 

understand principles of successful leadership, develop skills in feedback, personal 

communication, effective relationships and understand how beliefs impact on 

behaviours.  

  

Page 45



 

38 
 

 
Whistleblowing Report 2021/2022  
 
The Whistleblowing Policy was reviewed, and the revised policy was ratified and launched 

across the council in April 2022. This policy is now called, ‘Raising Concerns at Work.’ 

One of the main differences to the revised policy is that concerns raised by elected 

members will not be dealt with under this policy and any concerns involving the conduct 

of elected members should be referred to the Monitoring Officer.  

 

Safecall still remains an important platform for staff to raise concerns at work however 

over the past year, the main method used for reporting these concerns are by letters or 

emails that have been sent to the Chief Executive.  

 

Safecall is an external company which provides a helpline and promotional materials to 

support staff to raise concerns either anonymously or directly and staff or members of the 

public can contact Safecall via email or by telephone directly. The use of Safecall is 

advertised every week with the council’s weekly communication bulletin. Safecall’s 

advisors are trained individuals with many of them being ex-police officers. The total costs 

payable to Safecall during 2021/2022 were £4,073.60, for 4288 employees based on 

£0.95 per head. 

 

 Whistleblowing Data during 2021/22 

 

During 2021/2022 there were 10 (down from 26 in the previous year) issues/allegations 

reported in line with the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. 

 

 

Service 

Raised 
through 
which 

process 

Allegation / Issue Open/Closed Outcome 

Planning and 
Local Services 

Other Breach of Policies Closed No action required 

Planning and 
Local Services 

Formal 
Whistleblowing 

General 
whistleblowing 
allegations  

Closed Informal Resolution 

Adults, 
Children's, 
Education 

Other Discrimination Closed Informal Resolution 

Planning and 
Local Services 

Safecall Bullying Closed Informal Resolution 

Public Health 
and 
Community 
Services 

Other Bullying Closed Investigated through 
Dignity at Work process 

Page 46



 

39 
 

Adults, 
Children's, 
Education 

Other General 
whistleblowing 
allegations  

Closed No action required 

Property 
Services 

Other Employment 
Practices/Behaviours  

Closed No action required 

Adults, 
Children's, 
Education 

Other General 
whistleblowing 
allegations  

Closed  No action required 

Adults, 
Children's, 
Education 

Other Bullying Open Ongoing 

Planning and 
Local Services 

Safecall Bullying Closed Recommendation made 

 

 

The source of referrals were as follows: 

 

Directorate Number of referrals 

Adults, Children’s, Education 4 

Planning and Local Services 4 

Property Services 1 

Public Health and Community Services 1 

Total:  10 

 

Format of referral: 

 

Format Number 

Formal Whistleblowing 1 

Other 7 

Safecall 2 

Total: 10 

 

Nature of referral: 

 

Nature of referral: Number 

Breach of Policy 1 

Bullying 4 

Page 47



 

40 
 

Employment Practices/Behaviours 1 

Discrimination 1 

General Whistleblowing Allegation  3 

Total: 10 

 

Outcomes from referral: 

 

Outcome Number 

Informal Resolution 3 

No action required 4 

Recommendation made 6 

Training and Management Action 2 

Ongoing – Outcome TBC 1 

Total: 10 

 

Whistleblowing Policy 

 

The Whistleblowing Policy has always had a policy of investigating any concerns that are 

raised by staff. The revised policy launched in April 2022 has been amended to reflect 

these changes. 

  

Page 48



 

41 
 

Conclusions of report  
 
There has been significant work progressed and achieved despite and due to the 
Coronavirus pandemic during 2021/22 within the HR/OD team during what has been a 
difficult year for staff. The notable achievements of personalised risk assessments, the 
changes to the way that staff work and are being managed is a testament to the 
excellent workforce and quality HR/OD service that the Council provides. There have 
also been significant projects undertaken such as the transfer of 600 staff into NCC. 
  
Recommendations 
 
The recommendations are: 

● Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee note 

the contents of the report. 

● Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

continue to receive an annual update of this report for every financial year.  

● Note the data that is contained in the whistleblowing report and the ongoing work 

to promote a safe environment for staff to raise concerns through various 

mechanisms across the Council. 

● Support the continued use of Safecall across the Council as an additional 

mechanism for staff to raise concerns accordingly. 

   

Implications arising from this report 

Policy All workforce actions need to be in line with government covid-
19 regulations and guidelines. 

Finance and 
value for 
money 

The workforce is of significant cost to the Council and therefore 
it is essential that the workforce performs well to ensure that the 
Council achieves value for money in relation to service 
provision. 

Legal There are legal implications for the Council if employment 
practices are not in line with the law and best practice. 

Procurement None. 

Human 
Resources 

As included within the report. 

Property The WorkSmart project has implications for the use and 
functionality of the building's estate going forward. 

Equalities 
(Impact 
Assessment 
attached) 
Yes ☐  No ☒   
N/A       ☐ 

All HR policies and procedures are subject to an equality impact 
assessment. 

Risk 
Assessment 

Risks relating to the ongoing health and wellbeing of staff are 
managed locally and both Strategic and Operational Risk 
registers are in operation 

Crime & 
Disorder 

None. 

Customer 
Consideration 

Improved staff performance will impact on the quality of 
customer experiences. 

Page 49



 

42 
 

Carbon 
reduction 

WorkSmart and home working during the pandemic has positive 
environmental impacts as does the introduction of specific 
training for Climate Change. 

Wards All. 

 
Report sign off. 
 
Authors must ensure that officers and members have agreed the content of the report:  
 

 initials 

Finance Officer Jan Wallis 

Monitoring Officer/Legal Suki Bingal 

Human Resources Leanne Furnell 

Executive Director Rick O’Farrel on 
behalf of D Lally 

Portfolio Holder(s) Richard 
Wearmouth 

 
Author and Contact Details 
 
Leanne Furnell 
Interim Service Director, HR/OD 
Leanne.Furnell@northumberland.gov.uk  
 

Page 50

mailto:Leanne.Furnell@northumberland.gov.uk


Our Key Strategic Themes

Our People: The Heart of Northumberland
Our Values

O
ur Strategic Aim

 is to take a clim
ate conscious approach to delivery 

of the HR/O
D People Strategy 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 1 of 17 

 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

11 July 2022 

Debt Recovery Update 

Report of Jan Willis, Interim Executive Director of Finance & Section 151 Officer 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Richard Wearmouth, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 

Corporate Services 

 

Purpose of report 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Corporate Services and Economic Growth 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee with information relating to the level of outstanding debt 

owed to the Council so that the Committee may satisfy itself as to the efficiency and 

effectiveness of its collection and recovery policies and systems. 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the contents of the report are noted. 

Link to Corporate Plan 

Effective income management processes are critical to the delivery of overall Council 

service objectives.  A more efficient income management process contributes to the 

availability of resources for wider or deeper service provision. 

Key issues 

The management of income is a key business area for Northumberland County Council.  

The Council collects income from many sources; some of this activity is governed by 

legislation while other areas by sound principles of financial management.  The key to 

economic, efficient and effective income management is the creation and maintenance of a 

clear framework that sets out the approach, principles, ownership and strategy within which 

all activities will be conducted. 

It is essential that income is collected effectively by the Council, and that debt owed to the 

Council is kept to a minimum.  This is because the Council has both a legal duty and a 

responsibility to its citizens to ensure that income due is paid promptly to ensure it can 

minimise the burden of unpaid debt and enhance service delivery. 

The management of all monies owed to the Council is detailed in the Corporate Debt 

Recovery Policy and includes the following: 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 2 of 17 

 

• Council Tax and NNDR Recovery Policy 

• Council Tax and NNDR Court Costs and Fees Policy 

• Housing and Council Tax Benefit/Support Overpayments Policy 

• Methods of Payment Policy 

• Write Off Policy 

• Sundry Debt Policy 

• Overpaid Salaries and Wages Policy 

• Bankruptcy Policy 

• Enforcement Agent Code of Practice for Council Tax and NNDR 

• Housing Income Management Policy 

Background 

Write Offs 

1. An integral part of debt recovery is the effective management of irrecoverable debts 

to ensure that resources are applied effectively to the collection of monies 

outstanding which can reasonably be expected to be collected. 

2. The total debt written off in the last four financial years is shown below: 

 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Sundry debt  £224,596.64 £266,343.83 £47,567.52 £1,087.21 

Council Tax £476,560.30 £158,220.13 £161,032.28 £139,803.47 

Business Rates £790,990.74 £1,057,697.40 £94,466.86 £44,689.99 

Benefit Overpayments £163,855.28 £103,005.65 £56,417.16 £111,908.65 

Housing Rent & Other Debt £394,903.58 £507,807.23 £434,020.33 £786,935.77 

Adult Social Care £37,671.68 £5,369.31 £0.00 £64,244.66 

Total £2,088,578.22 £2,098,443.55 £793,504.15  £1,148,669.75 

 

Notes: 

1. The reduction in volume and value of write offs in 2020-21 is due to staff 

resources being redirected to the Coronavirus response. 

3. In accordance with the Council’s Finance and Contract Rules, write offs are reported 

annually to the Cabinet. 

4. Due to Covid-19, there is unlikely to be any benchmarking data on performance in 

2021-22. 

 

Page 54



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 3 of 17 

 

 

Sundry Debt 

5. At 31 March 2022 the Council was owed £34.140 million by its sundry debtors.  The 

debt, analysed by its maturity, is shown below (with 31 March 2021 figures shown for 

comparison): 

Age of debt 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

 Number of 

Invoices 

Balance Due 

£’000 

Number of 

Invoices 

Balance 

Due 

£’000 

Up to 3 months past due 1,235  9,087  1,079 3,584 

3 to 6 months past due  510  1,664  716 707 

6 to 9 months past due 441  928  712 874 

9 to 12 months past due 505  484  474 970 

1 to 5 years past due 2,664  2,285  3,407 4,671 

Over 5 years past due 241  454  297 500 

Debt past due date 5,596 14,902 6,685 11,306 

Debt within terms 253  976  1,982 22,834 

Total debt 5,849  15,878  8,667 34,140 

Notes: 

Debt past due has increased mainly due to the following:  

1. An increase in Adult Social Care invoices due to an increase in the number of 

customers receiving care.  Due to Covid-19 there have been delays in probate 

being granted for deceased customers, and there has been an increase in the 

number of Panel Deputies appointed and delays in being able to access customer 

funds.  

6. Twelve customers have past due balances of over £0.100 million at 31 March 2022.  

Details are shown below with 30 September 2021 figures for comparison. The total 

of £4.226 million past due represents 37.4% of the total debt past due as at 31 March 

2022.  

Customer 30 September 2021 31 March 2022 

 Number of 

Invoices 

Value Past 

Due 

£’000 

Number of 

Invoices 

Value Past 

Due 

£’000 

NHS Customer 2 (see note 1)  25  3,699  24 691 

NHS Customer 4 (see note 2)  17  973  21 1,102 

NHS Customer 6 (see note 3) - - 1 100 

Customer 1 (see note 4)  12  120  12 120 

Customer 2  3  119  - - 

Customer 3  43  106  - - 

Company 3 (see note 5) - - 99 117 

Page 55



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 4 of 17 

 

Company 6 (see note 6) - - 2 352 

Company 12 (see note 7)  1  300  1 300 

Company 13  2  4,745  - - 

Company 14  3  136  - - 

Company 15 (see note 8) - - 2 170 

Education 6  3  236  - - 

Education 7 (see note 9)  5  827  3 868 

Education 8 (see note 10) - - 47 132 

Council 3 (see note 11)  8  178  9 147 

Council 10 (see note 12) - - 1 127 

Government Department 2  1  2,381  - - 

Total  123  13,820  222 4,226 

 

Notes: 

1. The invoices are being pursued.  

2. The invoices are being pursued.  

3. The invoice is being pursued. 

4. Part payment received from proceeds of sale of property, a significant shortfall 

was anticipated.  Legal Services are considering Counsel’s opinion on options for 

Recovery of the debt.  

5. The invoices are being pursued. 

6. Invoices are now paid.  

7. Invoice being pursued.  

8. Invoices are now paid.  

9. Invoices are now paid.  

10. The invoices are being pursued 

11. 1 invoice is now paid and the remaining 8 invoices totalling £119,461 are being 

pursued. 

12. Invoice now paid.  

 

7. Analysis of the level of overdue debt as at 31 March 2022 by the service area raising 

the invoices is shown below (again with 31 March 2021 figures for comparison): 

Service Area 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

 Number 

of 

Invoices 

Value Past Due 

£’000 

Number of 

Invoices 

Value Past Due 

£’000 

Adult Services 2,968  4,702  3,700 4,635 

Children’s Social Care 135  656  168 574 

Corporate Resources (Finance) 596  7,104  716 2,779 

Corporate Resources (IT) 34  135  25 89 

Corporate Resources (Legal and 

Health & Safety) 

8  73  14 77 

Page 56



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 5 of 17 

 

Service Area 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

 Number 

of 

Invoices 

Value Past Due 

£’000 

Number of 

Invoices 

Value Past Due 

£’000 

Culture, Heritage & Libraries 9  29  4 11 

Fire & Rescue 20  18  23 22 

Housing 9  11  8 16 

Housing Services 5  6  3 5 

Local Services (including 

Projects) 

1,379  1,265  1,438 1,343 

Property & Estate Management  90  457  131 838 

Pension Fund 0  0  0 0 

Public Health/Protection 265  214  312 229 

Regeneration & Dev Man 9  55  27 526 

Schools 69  177  66 162 

Total 5,596  14,902  6,635 11,306 

Notes: 

1. An increase in Adult Social Care invoices due to an increase in the number of 

customers receiving care.  Due to Covid-19 there have been delays in probate 

being granted for deceased customers, and there has been an increase in the 

number of Panel Deputies appointed and delays in being able to access customer 

funds.  

2. Property & Estate Management are owed £0.300 million by one customer which 

is being pursued. 

 

Council Tax 

8. Council Tax is charged on domestic dwellings in the County.  There were 157,804 

domestic dwellings in Northumberland on 31 March 2022, with a net collectable debit 

of £221,951 million for 2021-22. 

9. Each financial year there will be an amount of Council Tax that is not paid and that 

amount is added to the arrears that were carried forward at the start of the financial 

year (less the amount collected during the year) to give a total arrears figure 

outstanding.  At 31 March 2022 £15.900 million was outstanding in total (£6.161 

million relating to the 2021-22 financial year).   

10. A comparison with previous years is shown below: 

 2018-19 

£’000 

2019-20 

£’000 

2020-21 

£’000 

2021-22 

£’000 

Arrears at 31 March 9,559 11,632 14,824 15,900 

Arrears at 31 March relating to the last billed year 3,935 5,376 6,489 6,161 

Page 57



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 6 of 17 

 

11. Arrears at 31 March 2022 are at their highest ever level.  This is due to the impact of 

Covid-19 on collection and enforcement in 2020-21.   

12. The Council’s collection rate for in-year collection (this does not include arrears) for 

2021-22 was 97.4% against a Covid-19 target of 96.6%.    

13. The in-year collection rate at 31 March 2022 has increased from 97.0 in 2020-21.  

This is due to the restart of recovery and enforcement action during 2021-22. 

Recovery action was suspended in 2020-21 due to the Covid-19 pandemic.   

14. Benchmarking performance:    

• The in-year collection rate for 2021-22 was again the highest of 11 North East 

Councils.   

• National benchmarking data is not yet published. 

• Due to Covid-19, CIPFA Benchmarking is unlikely to be carried out for 2021-

22 performance. 

15. In-year collection rates for the past four years are shown below, with collection rates 

for customers in receipt of Council Tax Support shown for comparison: 

 

 

2018-19 

% 

*2019-20 

% 

**2020-

21 

% 

2021-22 

% 

Overall Collection Rate 98.1 97.6 97.0 97.4 

Council Tax Support Collection Rate 86.7 *82.6 **83.6 ***83.9 

Notes: 

1. *Council Tax Support reduced by 8% in 2019-20.    

2. **Working-age customers in receipt of Council Tax Support received a 

Hardship Fund payment of up to £150.00 per claim. 

3. *** Working-age customers in receipt of Council Tax Support received a 

Hardship Fund payment of up to £300.00 per claim. 

16. The number of customers paying by Direct Debit at annual billing (who had something 

to pay) reduced to 83.5% for 2022-23.  Due to Covid-19 there is unlikely to be any 

benchmarking data from CIPFA again for 2021-22 annual billing, but the Council had 

the highest take-up of all the contributors for 2019-20 and 2018-19.  A comparison 

with previous years is shown below: 

 

 

2019-20 

% 

2020-21 

% 

2021-22 

% 

2022-23 

% 

Number of customers on Direct Debit at 

annual billing (who had something to pay) 

 

*74.4 77.1 86.0 **83.5 

Notes: 

Page 58



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 7 of 17 

 

1. * The reduction in 2019-20 was due to the 8% reduction in Council Tax Support 

for those working age customers who previously had nothing to pay.  

2. ** The reduction in 2022-23 is due to an increase in the number of Tax Payers 

who have nothing to pay because they receive Hardship Fund payments.   

17. During the previous four financial years the Council issued the following recovery 

notices: 

 2018-19 *2019-20 **2020-

21 

2021-22 

1st or 2nd Reminders 39,598 47,211 7,773  32,028 

Final Notices 2,885 3,051 0  2,228 

Summonses 9,704 15,861 3,998  12,782 

Liability Orders 7,846 11,815 3,231  8,920 

Notes: 

1. *Recovery notices increased in 2019-20 due to customers affected by the 8% 

reduction in Council Tax Support falling into arrears.   

2. **Due to Covid-19, statutory reminders were only issued from September to 

December 2020 and there was only one cycle of summonses and court 

hearings in 2020-21.   

18. Once a Liability Order is obtained enforcement action is normally an on-going 

process.  During 2020-21 Attachment of Earnings Orders and referrals to the 

Enforcement Agents were suspended until August 2020.  A breakdown of some of 

the enforcement methods that are used, and the number of cases currently subjected 

to that type of action is as follows: 

 

 

 

Number of 

cases  

Outstanding 

Amount  

£’000  

Attachment of benefit (see note 1 below) 2,899  971  

Attachment of earnings  1,293  913 

Enforcement Agent (Formerly Bailiff)  5,222  4,125 

Committal (see notes 2 & 3 below)   34  40  

Bankruptcy/Statutory Demand (see note 3 below)  33  62  

Charging Orders (see note 3 below) 18  92  

Notes:  

1. Includes 2,382 Attachment of Benefit from Universal Credit. 

2. No Council Tax defaulters were sent to prison 2021-22. 

3. These cases can comprise one or multiple Liability Orders.  No further 

enforcement action was taken via the courts in 2020-21. 

Page 59



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 8 of 17 

 

19. During the previous four financial years the following number of cases were subject 

to enforcement action: 

 Number of 

cases 

 2018-19  

Number of 

cases 

 2019-20  

Number of 

cases 

 2020-21  

Number of 

cases 

 2021-22  

Attachment of benefit 3,196 4,500 2,176  2,296 

Attachment of earnings  3,755 3,133 1,046  2,319 

Enforcement Agent  4,506 4,802 1,243  5,998 

Committal (see note 1)   0 0 0  0 

Statutory Demands (see note 1) 16 10 0  0 

Bankruptcy Petitions (see note 1)   7 2 0  0 

Bankruptcy Orders (see note 1)  2 2 0  0 

Interim Charging Orders (see note 1) 8 7 0  0 

Final Charging Orders (see note 1) 6 7 0  0 

Notes: 

1. These cases can comprise one or multiple Liability Orders. 

 

Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates) 

20. Non-Domestic Rates are charged on business properties in the County.  There are 

currently 14,223 business properties in Northumberland, with a total rateable value 

of £235,842 million, and with a net collectable debit of £72,512 million for 2021-22. 

21. Each financial year there will be an amount of Non-Domestic Rates that is not paid 

and that amount is added to the arrears that were carried forward at the start of the 

financial year (less the amount collected during the year) to give a total arrears figure 

outstanding.  At 31 March 2022 £7,211 million was outstanding in total (£3,172 million 

relating to the 2021-22 financial year).     

22. A comparison with previous years is shown below: 

 

 

2018-19 

£’000 

2019-20 

£’000 

2020-21 

£’000 

2021-22 

£’000 

Arrears at 31 March 3,091 3,648 6,577 7,211 

Arrears at 31 March relating to the last 

billed year 

1,207 1,930 3,250 3,172 

 

23. Arrears at 31 March 2022 are at their highest ever level.  This is due to the impact of 

Covid-19 on collection and enforcement in 2020-21. 

24. The Council’s collection rate for in-year collection (this does not include arrears) was 

95.7% in 2021-22 against a Covid-19 target of 96.2%. The collection rate was 

impacted by a reduction in Retail and Hospitality Discount from 100% to 66% from 1 

July 2021.   

Page 60



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 9 of 17 

 

25. Benchmarking performance:    

• This performance is below the average compared to the other 11 North East 

Councils (96.5%).   

• National benchmarking data is not yet published. 

• Due to Covid-19, CIPFA Benchmarking is unlikely to be carried out for 2021-

22 performance.   

2. A comparison with previous years is shown below: 

 

 

2018-19 

% 

2019-20 

% 

2020-21 

% 

2021-22 

% 

Overall Collection Rate 98.3 97.7 93.3 95.7 

 

26. The number of businesses paying by Direct Debit at annual billing (who had 

something to pay) reduced to 63.3% for 2022-23.  Due to Covid-19 there is unlikely 

to be any benchmarking data from CIPFA again for 2022-23 annual billing, but the 

Council had the highest take-up of all the contributors for 2019-20 and 2018-19.  A 

comparison with previous years is shown below: 

 

 

2019-20 

% 

2020-21 

% 

2021-22 

% 

2022-23 

% 

Number of businesses on Direct Debit at 

annual billing (who had something to pay) 

 

72.9 71.0 *82.0 **63.3 

Notes: 

1. * The increase for 2021-22 is due to the Covid-19 Retail, Hospitality & Leisure and 

Nursery Discounts increasing the number of businesses who have nothing to pay. 

2. ** The decrease for 2022-23 is due to the reduction of the Covid-19 Retail, 

Hospitality & Leisure and Nursery Discounts from 100% to 66% increasing the 

number of businesses who have something to pay. 

 

 

27. During the previous four financial years the Council issued the following recovery 

notices:  

 2018-19 2019-20 *2020-21 2021-22 

Reminders 3,037 2,987 472 5,410 

Summonses 571 780 0 1,166 

Liability Orders 357 411 0 558 

 

Page 61



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 10 of 17 

 

Notes: 

1. *Due to Covid-19, other than statutory reminders in October, November and 

December 2020, no other formal recovery notices were issued for business 

rates arrears in 2020-21.   

28. Referrals to the Enforcement Agents were suspended until August 2020.  A 

breakdown of some of the enforcement methods that are used, and the number of 

cases currently subjected to that type of action is as follows: 

 Number of 

cases  

Outstanding Amount  

£’000  

Enforcement Agent  68 273 

Committal (see notes 1 & 2 below)   1 3 

Bankruptcy/Statutory Demand (see note 2 below)  5 125 

Notes:  

3. No ratepayers were sent to prison in 2020-21. 

4. These cases can comprise one or multiple Liability Orders.  No enforcement 

action was taken via the courts in 2020-21. 

29. During the previous four financial years the following number of cases were subject 

to enforcement action: 

 Number of 

cases 

 2018-19 

Number of 

cases 

 2019-20 

Number of 

cases 

 2020-21 

Number of 

cases 

 2021-22 

Enforcement Agent 206 270 14  24 

Committal (see note 1) 0 0 0  0 

Statutory Demands  (see note 1)   10 3 0  0 

Bankruptcy Petitions (see note 1) 10 2 0  0 

Bankruptcy Orders (see note 1)    2 1 0  0 

Notes: 

1. These cases can comprise one or multiple Liability Orders. 

Housing Benefit Overpayments 

30. Housing benefit overpayments are payments of benefit to which there was no 

entitlement.  Reasons for overpayment are mainly changes in financial circumstances 

(automatic tax credit uploads; differences between new claims and details held on 

system e.g. finances, capital held, family members and the detection of fraud), 

claimants vacating their properties with little or no notice or claimants passing away.  

The Council has an Overpayment Policy which details overpayment collection. 

31. Council Tax Benefit and Council Tax Support overpayments are collected through 

the Council Tax account and any non-payment is subject to the debt recovery 

methods described above. 

Page 62



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 11 of 17 

 

32. The Council receives subsidy of up to 40% for most of its housing benefit 

overpayments and any additional money collected is kept by the Council.  In 2021-

22 overpayments of £1.086 million were identified with £0.688 million recovered in 

year (63.34%).  This compares with 66.3% being recovered in year in 2020-21, 54.1% 

2019-20 and 56.0% in 2018-19.  A further £0.758 million was collected in respect of 

overpayments identified prior to 1 April 2021.  

33. A total of £1.446 million was recovered in 2021-22 compared to £1.616 in 2020-21, 

£2.394 million in 2019-20 and £2.623 million in 2018-19 and £3.029 million in 2017-

18.  The drop in recovery can be attributed to the movement of Housing Benefit 

claimants to Universal Credit, thus removing our opportunity to recover from future 

payments of Housing Benefit, and fewer overpayments being created.  In addition, 

no proactive recovery action was undertaken until August 2021 as a result of the 

Covid-19 pandemic. One team member retired and two new team members were 

recruited.  Cash collected in 2021-22 amounted to £0.505 million compared to £0.436 

million in 2020-21, £0.845 million in 2019-20, £0.909 million in 2018-19 and £0.904 

million in 2017-18.  

34. There is currently £3.891 million outstanding in respect of housing benefit 

overpayments (£0.371 million in respect of overpayments identified in 2021-22 and 

£3.521 million in respect of prior years).  £3.862 million is recoverable and recovery 

action is taking place utilising the following methods of recovery (with 31 March 2021 

figures for comparison):  

Recovery Method  No of cases/ 

invoices 

31 March 

2021 

£’000 

No of cases/ 

invoices 

31 March 

2022 

£’000 

On-going entitlement to benefit  540 832 469 598 

Invoice stage  277 341 230 336 

Reminder stage 597 705 98 249 

Final stage 646 802 566 756 

External debt collector 181 198 254 273 

Attachment of benefit (clerical 

claims) 

12 68 10 61 

DWP Referrals 1,088 1,009 1,163 1,326 

Direct Earnings Attachment 270 407 180 262 

CCJ obtained  0 0 0 0 

CCJ cases with High Court 

Enforcement 

1 1 1 1 

Total  3,612 4,363 2,971 3,862 

 

35. Invoices are raised for all recovery methods except where deductions are being made 

from on-going entitlement to benefit. 

Page 63



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 12 of 17 

 

36. When it is identified that a debtor has begun to claim benefit again, and payments 

are not being made on an invoice, the debt is brought back into the benefit system 

and is recovered from on-going benefit entitlement. 

37. Benchmarking performance:  

• The Council had the 5th lowest level of outstanding overpayments at the end of 

2021-22 compared to the other 11 North East Councils, and again the second 

lowest ratio of Housing Benefit overpayments to Housing Benefit caseload.  

• Due to Covid-19, CIPFA Benchmarking is unlikely to be carried out for 2021-22 

performance. 

38. The £1..086 million of overpayments identified in 2021-22 are broken down as follows 

with 2020-21 £1.373 million for comparison): 

 2020-21 2021-22 

Overpayment Reason              Council 

Tenants 

£’000                  

Private 

Tenants  

£’000  

Council 

Tenants 

£’000                  

Private 

Tenants  

£’000  

Claimant Error 174 1,102 154 789 

Local Authority Error                       7 18 1 28 

Administrative Delay                       2 15 4 41 

Fraud          14 22 4 45 

DWP Error                                      1 2 4 2 

Technical Overpayments                13 3 9 5 

Total 211 1,162 176 910 

 

39. In 2021-22 total Housing Benefit expenditure was £55,991 million and there were 

13,030 claimants as at 31 March 2022.  In 2020-21 total Housing Benefit expenditure 

was £60,396 million and there were 16,190 claimants as at 31 March 2021. 

 

Housing Rent and other debt 

40. As with other debt and income (see Key Issues above), the Council has a 

responsibility to all tenants to ensure the efficient and effective collection of rent, 

whilst minimising levels of debt that is written-off, to reduce the burden of unpaid debt 

on the ring-fenced Housing Revenue Account.  In doing so, it allows services to be 

maintained and provides the opportunity to enhance service delivery by releasing 

additional funds. 

41. A 4-year analysis of current and former tenant rent arrears is shown below.    

Measure 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Annual Rent Debit £31.0m £30.2m £31.7m  £32.1m 
Current arrears as a % of the annual rent 
debit (changed to % collected in 2019-20) 

1.88 % 98.52% 100.18%  100.87% 

Page 64



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 13 of 17 

 

Current tenant rent arrears outstanding £582,836 £753,659 £653,642  £599,705 
Former arrears as a % of the annual rent 
debit 

3.82% 4.10% 3.72%  2.97% 

Former tenant rent arrears outstanding £1,184,575 £1,238,348 £1,183,229  £953,341 

 

42. The targets for rent arrears in 2021-22 were: 

• Collection of current arrears - to collect 98% of rent due 

• Former tenant arrears as a % of the annual rent debit - 1.90% 

Note - Both amounts are year on year cumulative totals expressed as a percentage 

of the annual rent debit. 

43. The target for current tenant rent arrears was exceeded. This is notable performance 

given the impact arising from full service of Universal Credit (UC) and due to financial 

difficulties faced by customers during the Covid-19 pandemic and wider cost of living 

increases.  

44. Whilst former tenant arrears target was not achieved, we have seen a reduction in 

the total level of arrears outstanding and are making progress to reduce the overall 

debt further.  There have been significant changes in working practices within former 

collection and work has been realigned to assist performance and reduce debt. There 

is also a review underway of Housing Operations and we will be looking to build on 

working practices and provide more support around this type of collection.  

45. Benchmarking performance:  Housing Operations have recently joined HouseMark. 

This is a national benchmarking framework which will allow KPI comparisons and 

service analysis against our local and national partners.  Performance comparisons 

for 2021-22 demonstrate that our collection for current tenants is in the upper quartile 

and ahead of our peers locally. 

46. Whilst it is a priority to support tenants as much as possible to enable their tenancies 

to be maintained, as an absolute last resort, eviction must be considered.  A known 

consequence of such action is the possibility of additional former tenant arrears and 

in the previous four years the following action has been taken: 

 

Measure 2018-19  2019-20  2020-21  2021-22  

Number of Notices of Seeking 
Possession 

775 734 715 781 

Number of Evictions 49 50 0 6 

Notes: 

1. It should be noted that whilst there have been six evictions as a result of rent 

arrears, these have been from customers where they have already left the home 

and eviction has been sought to end the legal tenancy and recover the property.  

Page 65



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 14 of 17 

 

47. In respect of all other housing debt, 2021-22 end of year performance is shown below, 

together with end of year performance in 2020-21 for comparison: 

 Current Tenants Former Tenants 

Measure 31 March 2021 31 March 

2022 

31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

Garage Arrears £1,321  £1,934 £7,961  £4,760 
Furniture Recharges £1,134  £780 £79,952  £41,813 
Repair Recharges £61,156  £55,507 £873,524  £578,146 
HB Overpayments £6,668  £6,699 N/A  N/A 
Leasehold Service 
Charge 

£52,010  £51,766 N/A  N/A 

Bankruptcy £9,958  £8,604 £10,077  £1,066 
Court Costs £104,390  £76,271 £160,014  £118,202 

48. In seeking to recover debt over and above that undertaken on a voluntary basis the 

Council made 48 debt collection referrals in 2021-22.  This compares with 52 in 2020-

21 and 55 in 2019-20. 

49. Full Service Universal Credit was introduced in Northumberland in November and 

December 2018.  At 31 March 2022 2,737 tenants were in receipt of the benefit, up 

from 2,266 tenants in March 2021. 

50. Tenants wait on average 5 weeks for their first monthly payment and it is during this 

period that arrears are accrued.  At 31 March 2022 this had resulted in collective 

arrears of £425,628, down by £46,104 from March 2021.   

51. The average rent for a Northumberland County Council property is £77.16 per week 

and on average those in receipt of UC are in arrears of £481.61 which equates 

to 6.2 weeks of rent payments.  For those tenants not in receipt of UC the average 

arrears were £331.85, therefore those on UC are performing better than those that 

aren’t.  There are 891 Alternative Payment Arrangements and 338 third party 

reductions in place for rent arrears. 

52. In addition to UC, a further 44 tenants are affected by the Benefit Cap.  This is the 

same as at 31 March 2021.  The Council’s Welfare Support Officers are working 

closely with these tenants and, where possible, are assisting with their claims for 

Discretionary Housing Payment. 

53. Officers continue to work pro-actively with all tenants in arrears.  Home visits are re-

commencing where needed and work in partnership with other agencies such 

as Citizens Advice Northumberland. We continue to use as many different contact 

methods to try to support customers throughout the challenging pandemic. 

54. Our Welfare support officers have worked hard to assist customers when facing 

financial hardship. During 2021-22 they were able to generate an extra £476,032.20 

directly for customers through income maximisation, grants and extra benefit 

entitlement.  

Other Housing Revenue Account Debt 

Page 66



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 15 of 17 

 

55. In addition to the Housing debt above the following is a breakdown of other housing 

debt to the Housing Revenue Account, again with performance from 2020-21 for 

comparison: 

 Current Tenants Former Tenants 

Measure 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 

Valley Care £2,263  £2,230 £2,552  £1,469 

Recent and current developments 

56. Quarterly joint meetings are held with the Council’s appointed Enforcement Agents 

and Citizens Advice Northumberland.  Citizens Advice Northumberland continues to 

report that they have no major issues in relation to the work being carried out by the 

Enforcement Agents. 

57. The Cabinet Office is working with local authorities to set up data sharing pilots with 

HMRC to share employment information for council tax collection.  Data sharing 

would improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the council tax enforcement 

process, a greater number of Attachment of Earnings Orders will be issued to 

employers, and collection rates will improve.  The Recovery Manager is leading a 

group comprising of Northumberland County Council and the five Tyne and Wear 

Councils.  The initial data share went live in late 2021 and we are currently awaiting 

the data share back from HMRC. 

58. Acknowledging the need to maximise rent collection, whilst reducing bad debt, work 

continues to review all outstanding accounts, profiling of debt and streamlining of 

enforcement and administrative processes.    

59. The Income Service, whilst faced with challenges in the way that recovery could be 

undertaken in the last 12 months, has exceeded the current collection target.   

60. There have been some significant changes to internal policies and procedures to 

enhance the delivery method of sustaining tenancies and collecting with care.  The 

escalation policies have been reviewed and investment in IT infrastructure as well as 

training and support to staff to provide the best possible customer service which has 

proved successful in the results that have been achieved 

61. In December 2021, the authority was able to secure £105,000 to support customers 

directly impacted by covid in order to prevent homelessness. As a result of successful 

applications, the housing operations team were able to secure £87,534.20 of this 

funding to assist those in NCC tenancies.  

 

Implications 

Policy Debts are followed up in line with the agreed Council policies and 

as set out in the Council’s Finance and Contract rules. 

Page 67



  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 16 of 17 

 

Finance and 
value for 
money 

By improving the robustness of debt recovery, the Council will 

improve its cash flow, and reduce the risk of a need to write off 

outstanding amounts. 

Legal None 

Procurement None 

Human 
Resources 

None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact 

Assessment 

attached) 

Yes ☐  No ☐   

N/A       ☐ 

All debt recovery policies and the procedures they use have been 
subject to an equality impact assessment. 

Risk 
Assessment 

Risks relating to the non-recovery of debt are picked up within the 

relevant area’s service plan.  In addition, the risk assessments 

carried out in relation to the budget process highlight such areas 

and identify the appropriate controls.  Budget risk assessments 

are carried out on an annual basis. 

 

Crime & 
Disorder 

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 has been 

considered, and no implications have been identified. 

Customer 
Consideration 

Applying a more holistic approach and methodology to debt 

collection will ensure that all debtors and taxpayers are treated in 

a consistent manner.  Timely recovery of debts ensures a more 

effective use of public money. 

Carbon 
reduction 

None 

Health and 
Wellbeing  

None 

Wards All 

 
Background papers: 

Corporate Debt Recovery Policy 

Page 68

http://committees.northumberland.gov.uk/aksnorthumberland/images/att10782.pdf


  
Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee  11 July 2022 
Debt Recovery Update  Page 17 of 17 

 

Cabinet 13 July 2021:   
 
Report sign off. 
 
Authors must ensure that officers and members have agreed the content of the 
report:  
 

 Full Name of Officer 

Monitoring Officer/Legal Neil Masson  

Interim Executive Director of Finance & S151 Officer Jan Willis 

Relevant Executive Director Jan Willis 

Acting Deputy Chief Executive Rick O’Farrell 

Portfolio Holder(s) Richard Wearmouth 

 
 

 
Author and Contact Details 

Keith Teasdale 

Recovery Manager 

(01670) 624284 

keith.teasdale@northumberland.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Page 69

mailto:Susan.Mounsey@Northumberland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

 

CORPORATE SERVICES AND ECONOMIC GROWTH OSC – 11TH JULY 2022 

 

Green Homes Grants (Warmer Homes) Update 
 

Report of:   Matt Baker, Service Director for Climate Change, Business Intelligence 

and Corporate Performance 

Cabinet Member:   Cllr Glen Sanderson, Leader of the Council and Lead member for 

Climate Change 

 
 

Purpose of report 

 

1. To provide an update on the Green Homes Grant delivery and advise of progress since 

the funding approval in November 2021.   

 

Key Notes 

 

It is requested that Oversight and Scrutiny Committee note the following: 

1. For the purposes of public engagement, all Northumberland County Council 

managed funding streams aligned to domestic retrofit are being branded as Warmer 

Homes. 

2. The delivery model from our initial funding rounds has been revised and an internal 

delivery function, that will be managed by the Housing team, has been recruited. 

3. Internal processed and operations have been put in place to provide a more 

connected journey for residents. 

4. Public engagement has commenced with two in person events and further direct 

engagement is planned, working closely with elected Members. 

 

Executive Summary 

 

The Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy introduced a series of funding 

streams to improve energy efficiency of low income and low energy performance homes with 

a focus on energy performance certificate (EPC ratings of E, F or G). This will help to reduce 

fuel poverty and deliver towards the UK’s commitment to net zero by 2050, and the NCC 

commitment for net zero by 2030.  

 

NCC Have been successful in drawing in £11.8 million across four rounds of funding to 

support domestic retrofit. The first round of funding known as Local Authority Delivery Round 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



 

2 

1B (LAD1B) has been partially delivered by Eon as a turnkey solution. The future delivery of 

the schemes will be managed in-house with a collaborative approach between the Climate 

Change Team and the Housing team. The in-house approach is allowing NCC to work 

directly with residents and communities to identify the best solutions to support them.  

 

A multi-channel engagement strategy is underway with face-to-face events happening in 

pilot locations across the county, a web presence and links to local and parish councils.  

 

To date our initial phase of work has delivered energy saving measures into 137 low-income, 

energy inefficient homes with Eon. The funding that the climate change team has brought in 

can facilitate another 853 homes receiving measures across the county between now and 

31st March 2023.   

 

Warmer Homes Delivery Strategy 

 

The turnkey delivery solution offered by Eon served a purpose, allowing NCC to mobilise 

and act on the very tight timescales imposed under LAD1B. However, during the relationship 

several key issues emerged.  

1. Lack of control over the project and processes – residents would call Eon rather than 

NCC and limited data on who was in the process, at what stage and specific 

circumstances requiring support were shared. This led to a number of instances of 

residents directly calling NCC frustrated with the process but officers were limited in 

their ability to support other than to chase individual cases back through Eon.  

2. Costs and value for money – a key requirement of the funding and a core tenant of 

Local Government working is to prove value for money. While the grant funding 

covered all of the administrative and delivery costs incurred by Eon, certain aspects 

of the administration and capital delivery did not appear to provide value against the 

market. A specific example was the cost of solar PV. Based on soft market testing 

and previous experience the cost was two to three times the expected costs for the 

size of solar array being installed. Despite discussions with Eon senior management 

and their quantity surveyor, this discrepancy was not resolved.  

3. Speed of delivery – Eon helped write the initial bid for funding, which through their 

own recommendations involved a significant proportion of solar PV being installed. 

Their solar installation rates per week failed to achieve a level capable of achieving 

the total number they had placed in the bid. This has resulted in residents becoming 

frustrated with the process.  

4. Sub-contracting arrangements – The contracting and sub-contracting arrangements 

become very protracted in the process. At one stage there were four levels of sub-

contract arrangements for some elements. This meant that NCC had little control 

over the quality and workmanship of the measures installed into residents’ homes. 

Further to this, a number of residents have provided feedback stating that the 

surveyor that came to their properties flew to the area from Bristol, took their 

personal eligibility information and flew back the same day. Residents were naturally 

concerned both about the endorsement of air travel for a climate change alleviation 

project and that their details were being held by contractors from outside of the area 

who were not directly employed by NCC or Eon.  

Page 72



 

3 

5. Take-up – feedback from residents has also suggested that a Private Sector led 

approach may have impacted Eon, as it made some residents sceptical as to 

whether the scheme was in fact 100% grant funded. 

 

The delivery from Eon has yielded 345 applications, of which 137 went through to delivery. 

 

 
Figure 1. A map of the applications and installations undertaken by Eon during the LAD1b delivery 

 

Moving Forward 

Following the learning from our initial phase of delivery via Eon we have elected to change 

the delivery model and focus of future delivery utilising internal resources for key elements of 

the project. The £11.8million brought in has a significant administration budget available. 

 

Project Name Total Grant 
Value (£) 

Match 
Funding (£) 

Total Project 
Value (£) 

Admin 
allocation (£) 

LAD1b 2,923,176 505,237 3,428,413 322,521 

LAD2 2,214,042 0 2,214,042 248,514 

LAD3 2,116,541 0 2,116,541 317,433 

HUG  3,509,867 0 3,509,867 528,830 

SHDF1 1,035,933 566,299 1,602,232 237,130 

Total 11,799,559 1,071,536 12,871,095 1,654,428 

Table 1. Totals of the funding drawn into NCC through bids to government funding that will be delivered 

as the Warmer Homes programme 

 

                                                
1 Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) is a consortium bid between Northumberland County 
Council, Karbon Homes and Bernicia Homes. Table 2 details the funding split between the consortium 
parties. 

Page 73



 

4 

The £505,237 match funding for LAD1 is contained within the approved capital programme 

however it is the intention to utilise some of this match funding against the LAD2 delivery as 

this maximises the chances of a high rate of delivery. However, separate approval will be 

sought for the funding reallocation.  

 

   
Provider  

Capital   Admin 14.8%  Match 
Funding 

Total   Total  Grant    Match     Total  Grant    Match    

Bernicia   £143,900   £95,933   £47,967   £21,297   £14,198   £7,099   £55,066   

Karbon   £566,168   £370,000   £196,168   £83,793   £55,862   £27,931   £224,099   

NCC   £892,164   £570,000   £322,164   £132,040   £88,027   £44,013   £366,177   

Total   £1,602,232   £1,035,933   £566,299   £237,130   £158,087   £79,043   £645,342   
Table 2. Breakdown of the funding under Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) and the split 

between the consortium partners 

 

The £322,164 capital match funding contribution from the council shown in the table above is 

contained within the approved capital programme.  The revenue match funding contribution 

from the council is contained within the existing revenue budget.  

 

During the initial phase of delivery, LAD1b, it was identified that the turnkey approach was 

very costly to the administrative budget as well as the capital budgets. It was therefore 

identified that by bringing a team in house NCC could deliver the schemes over a longer 

period of time with a greater level of control, at a lower cost and keeping more of the 

expenditure within the local economy. By being cost effective NCC can seek to deliver more 

measures into properties across the county and support as many residents as possible 

within the restrictions of the current scheme.  

 

LAD1b -
EON 
Completed 

LAD1b - 
remainder 

LAD2 LAD3 HUG SHDF Total 

Social Homes 31   150     120 301 

Private Homes 106 168   190 225   689 

Total 137 168 150 190 225 120 990 

Table 3. Total number of properties supported through the Warmer Homes programme across all 

funding streams 

 

The above numbers of homes having measures delivered is ambitious for this financial year 

period. Some properties are receiving multiple measures and hence the total number of 

interventions is greater than the number of properties having funding provided. 

 

Measures LAD1b LAD2 LAD3 HUG SHDF Total 

ASHP 57 29 
 

100 
 

186 

EWI 49 
 

40 20 87 196 

Loft insulation 
  

80 80 
 

160 

Solar PV 199 121 65 75 
 

460 

Page 74



 

5 

Underfloor insulation 
  

30 40 30 100 

Grand Total 305 150 215 315 117 1102 

Table 4. Total number of forecasted measures delivered across the funding streams delivered in the 

Warmer Homes programme 

 

The interventions above will have a significant carbon saving for the county displayed below. 

Measures LAD1b LAD2 LAD3 HUG SHDF Total 

ASHP 82.8 42.1 
 

145.2 
 

270.1 

EWI 44.8 
 

36.5 18.3 79.5 179.0 

Loft insulation 
  

48.7 48.7 
 

97.4 

Solar PV 33.8 20.6 11.0 12.7 
 

78.1 

Underfloor insulation 
  

7.3 9.7 7.3 24.4 

Grand Total 161.4 62.7 103.5 234.7 86.8 649.0 

Table 5. Total carbon savings generated through the delivery of the Warmer Homes programme 

 

The previous marketing strategy relied on direct leaflet drops across Northumberland and 

then required residents to apply to the scheme via a call centre. To improve the accessibility 

of the scheme this element of the programme has been taken in house. An online web form 

has been created, linked to NCC’s Lagan system which is used for all resident engagement 

via the call centre, and a call centre option is available for registration too.  

 

To inform residents of the scheme and how to apply, direct engagement through events 

supported by local councillors have been set up in pilot locations where the data suggests 

there may be high levels of eligible residents. The events will provide information to the 

residents on the eligibility and what can be expected through the Warmer Homes Scheme. It 

will then be possible for the council to register residents live at the events. This closer 

engagement is hoped to improve the residents experience and lower the cost of direct 

mailout marketing.  

 

Page 75



 

6 

 
Figure 1. A geographical display of the applications made to the Warmer Homes scheme across 

Northumberland since the web page went live in April 22 

 

In-house team 

Following the approval has given by the Portfolio Holder, CEO and CFO in line with our 

governance arrangements for externally funded posts in November 2021, the council is on-

boarding a retrofit team.  

 

The five fixed term positions will be managed through Housing and will undertake the 

surveying, eligibility evidence review and post installation inspections. One round of 

recruitment has appointed three of the five required positions. For the other positions NCC 

will be reliant on external support until further recruitment can take place. This approach is 

both more cost effective than external delivery and allows NCC to build up tacit knowledge of 

the properties within the county and the support requirements needed by our residents.  

 

 

Post Designation Band  Gross Salary NI NCC 
Pension 

Total 

Retrofit Coordinator Band 8 33,486 3,401 7,032 43,919 

Retrofit Designer Band 7 29,174 2,806 6,126 38,106 

Retrofit Assessor Band 6 25,419 2,288 5,338 33,045 

Retrofit Assessor Band 6 25,419 2,288 5,338 33,045 

Community Retrofit 
Advisor 

Band 5 22,571 1,895 4,740 29,206 

Total   136,069 12,678 28,574 177,321 

Page 76



 

7 

Table 6. Costs and grades of the retrofit team created to support the delivery of the Warmer Homes 

programme 

 

Further to internalising the resident engagement and surveying requirement we are 

attempting to find methods to work more closely with our local supply chain contractors. 

North of Tyne are seeking to implement a procurement framework which will be able to be 

used by local authorities to appoint suitable contractors. It is unlikely this work will be in 

place until January 2023, but it is hoped it will be an accessible route to appoint local trades 

and keep the investments made by the Warmer Homes programme within the region.  

 

Longer Term Strategy 

 

Central government has made commitments to release further social housing funding until 

2030. While further low income private sector funding has not been announced it is expected 

that further rounds of Local Authority Delivery and Home Upgrades Grant will be available to 

continue the existing delivery window past March 2023.  

 

To provide support towards NCC’s 2030 carbon neutral pledge, growth in delivery numbers 

will need to be made year on year for as long as the central government funding is available. 

The retrofit team will be able to develop further information to support the county wide 

picture, through the delivery of measures in the current schemes. We are already advocating 

those properties and households that are ineligible to apply for the scheme to provide 

additional information and bolster additional bidding into future rounds.  

 

As successful bids are made the internal delivery team can have their contracts extended 

and where needed the team may expand in line with the additional properties per year 

required to be retrofitted.  

 

Link to Corporate Plan 

 

The Climate Change programme contributes to all the priorities included in the 

Northumberland County Council Corporate Plan 2018-2021: 

● How - efficient, open and work for everyone:  We will listen to and consider public views 

as we develop and implement our plan and we will empower local communities to do 

their part to tackle climate change. 

● Living - living, safe, healthy and cared for: We will work to reduce the impact of fuel 

poverty and climate change on community wellbeing. 

● Enjoying - love where you live: We will conserve and protect our exceptional natural 

environment assets. 

● Connecting - access to the things you need: We will promote resident access to 

sustainable transport options and renewable energy sources. 

● Learning - achieve and realise your potential: We will encourage the uptake of science, 

technology, engineering and maths (STEM) skills to support the development of our 

green economy. 

● Thriving - attract more and better jobs: We will position the county as a national 

exemplar location for renewable and low carbon energy generation and other green 

industry. 

Page 77



 

8 

Links to Climate Action Plan:  

 
Priority Action Area 3 - Heating Existing Buildings and New Buildings  
  
Poor energy efficiency in both domestic and non-domestic buildings results in the demand 
for excess heating. This causes unnecessarily high carbon emissions and 
energy costs.  Without compromising on heating and comfort standards we will work to 
address this through varied external and internal funding opportunities, partnerships and 
business case development.  This priority can drive clean economic growth.  
 

Implications 

Policy This project helps towards both national and NCC Climate change 

mediation policies, and towards the NCC corporate plan as detailed 

above.  

Finance and 

value for money 

The project provides financial assistance for homes wishing to improve 

their energy efficiency. 

Capital grant funding will be provided from Central Government, 

supplemented with Northumberland County Council match capital 

funding, which is contained within the approved capital programme.  

The administration funding is also provided from the Central 

Government grant.   

Capital and Revenue allocations are detailed within the main report. 

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. 

Legal 
Will require legal assistance to approve contracts between NCC and 
delivery partner.  

Procurement 
Procurement via an existing framework to appoint a delivery partner for 
the project.  
Longer term a framework is in development through North of Tyne 
Combined Authority, however support will be needed for the immediate 
tranches of work. 

Human 

Resources 

This project will mainly impact the Climate Change Team. However 
there may be calls to customer services in relation to the project.  

Property 
Project will improve energy efficiency for privately owned domestic 
dwellings in Northumberland.  

Equalities 

(Impact 

Assessment 

attached) 

Yes ☐  No x   N/A       

☐ 

 

Page 78



 

9 

Risk 

Assessment 

Project risk assessment has been completed in line with the grant 

funding requirements.  

Crime & 

Disorder 

N/A 

Customer 

Consideration 

Homeowners wishing to take part in the project will self-refer for works.  

Carbon 

reduction 

By improving the energy efficiency of homes in Northumberland the 

heating demand of the properties will reduce and lead to carbon 

savings.  

Wards We will target works in the Northumberland LSOAs in the most deprived 

10% of the IMD 2019. However, works may take place over the whole 

county depending on which eligible households self-refer for the project.  

 

Background papers 

 
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared

%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/LAD%202%20Del

egated%20Decision.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=trpO3Y 

 

https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared

%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/Cabinet%20Repo

rt/Final%20Execs%20IC%20Cabinet%20Report%20LAD2.docx?d=wcc03b79cdf70411f891e2a

d27b1e177a&csf=1&web=1&e=W3veYa   

Page 79

https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/LAD%202%20Delegated%20Decision.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=trpO3Y
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/LAD%202%20Delegated%20Decision.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=trpO3Y
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/LAD%202%20Delegated%20Decision.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=trpO3Y
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/Cabinet%20Report/Final%20Execs%20IC%20Cabinet%20Report%20LAD2.docx?d=wcc03b79cdf70411f891e2ad27b1e177a&csf=1&web=1&e=W3veYa
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/Cabinet%20Report/Final%20Execs%20IC%20Cabinet%20Report%20LAD2.docx?d=wcc03b79cdf70411f891e2ad27b1e177a&csf=1&web=1&e=W3veYa
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/Cabinet%20Report/Final%20Execs%20IC%20Cabinet%20Report%20LAD2.docx?d=wcc03b79cdf70411f891e2ad27b1e177a&csf=1&web=1&e=W3veYa
https://northumberland365.sharepoint.com/:w:/r/sites/teams.InnovationandImprovement/Shared%20Documents/Climate%20Change%20Team/3.%20Heating/Projects/LAD2/Cabinet%20Report/Final%20Execs%20IC%20Cabinet%20Report%20LAD2.docx?d=wcc03b79cdf70411f891e2ad27b1e177a&csf=1&web=1&e=W3veYa


 

10 

Report sign off 

 
 
Authors must ensure that relevant officers and members have agreed the content of 
the report:  
 

 Full name of officer 

Chief Executive Daljit Lally 

Monitoring Officer/Legal  Suki Benjal 

Finance Jan Willis 

Relevant Executive Director Rick O’Farrell 

Portfolio Holder(s) Cllr’ Glen Sanderson 

 

 
 
Authors and Contact Details 

 
Mark Roberts 

Senior Climate Change and Sustainability Manager 

mark.roberts@northumberland.gov.uk 

 

Matthew Baker 

Director for Climate Change, Business Intelligence and Corporate Performance 

matthew.baker@northumberland.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 80

mailto:mark.roberts@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.baker@northumberland.gov.uk


 

28 June 2022 

 
 
 

Northumberland County Council  
 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Work Programme and Monitoring Report 2022-2023 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sean Nicholson: 01670 622605 – Sean.Nicholson@northumberland.gov.uk 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 9



 

28 June 2022 

1. Terms of reference: 
  

(1) To maintain an overview of the Council’s Annual Budget and Budgetary Management via the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 

(2) To review the state of Northumberland and the County Council’s activity in delivering its Corporate Plan. 

 

(3) To maintain an overview of the Council’s performance management arrangements; highlighting areas of poor performance 
and monitoring recovery delivery plans. 

 

(4) To maintain an overview of the Management Agreements in place between the Council and Advance Northumberland. 

 

(5) To monitor, review and make recommendations about: 

 

• Corporate Services: Organisational Development, Health and Safety, ICT Strategy, Corporate Governance, Financial 
Services, Procurement Strategy, Risk Strategy, Shared and Traded Services  

• Partnership development coordination with local organisations 
• Relationships with external bodies  
• Regeneration and Economic Development  
• Strategic Transport Network and Infrastructure  
• Employability, Skills, and removing barriers to work  
• Capital Programme and Asset Management  
• Support to VCS organisations and the Council’s relationship with town and parish councils.  
  

  

P
age 82



 

28 June 2022 

 
Northumberland County Council 

Corporate Services and Economic Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2022-2023 
 

 
11 July 2022 

 

Annual Workforce Report 
 
Debt Recovery Update 
 
 
 
Green Homes Grant 
 
 
Trading Companies Financial 
Performance 
 

To consider this annual update. 
 
To provide the Committee with information regarding the level of outstanding debt owed to the 
Council and to give assurance as to the efficiency and effectiveness of its collection and 
recovery policies and systems. 
 
To receive an update on the report considered by the OSC in November on the allocation of 
grants. 
 
To consider this quarterly update. 

 
12 September 2022 
 

Broadband Connectivity 
 
 
Budget Consultation 2023/24 
 
Trading Companies Financial 
Performance 
 

To discuss the progress being made to improve broadband connectivity in the region and 
Northumberland in particular. 
 
To consult the Committee on the consultation process for next year’s budget proposals. 
 
To consider this quarterly update. 

 
10 October 2022 
 

  
 

P
age 83



 

28 June 2022 

 

 
7 November 2022 

 

 
 

 

 
12 December 2022 

 

Debt Recovery Update To provide the Committee with information regarding the level of outstanding debt owed to the 
Council and to give assurance as to the efficiency and effectiveness of its collection and 
recovery policies and systems. 
 

 
9 January 2023 
 

 
 

 

 
13 February 2023 

 

Budget 2023/24 
 

To invite members of all four OSCs to comment on the budget proposals for 2023/24. 
 

 
13 March 2023 

 

  
 

 
3 April 2023 

 

 
 

 

 
  

P
age 84



 

28 June 2022 

 

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	PRESENT
	COUNCILLORS
	OFFICERS

	5 FORWARD PLAN OF CABINET DECISIONS
	6 ANNUAL WORKFORCE REPORT
	Appendix 1 1 page  Strategy

	7 DEBT RECOVERY UPDATE
	8 GREEN HOMES GRANT
	9 WORK PROGRAMME

